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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRAEE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the Group’s consolidated financial results for the
2017 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group’s strategy and business outlook.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Last year was full of challenges. The Group has recorded lower revenue due to, including
but not limited to, the decrease of sales orders by the Group's U.S. customers, especially
the apparel retail section.

The Group has recorded turnover of HK$5,993.6 million for the 2017 Financial Year, which
shows a decrease of 13.5% over previous year. The Group's sales volume decreased by
13.0% at 155.8 million pounds, compared to 179.1 million pounds of the last financial
year. With much appreciation of the teamwork of staff and support from our business
partners, the Group managed to record a net profit margin at 16.3% (2016: 16.2%).

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK30 cents per share. Together with the
interim dividend of HK30 cents per share declared in November 2016, the total dividend
for the 2017 Financial Year will be HK60 cents per share.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The year ahead is believed to be full of challenges, and the weak demands of U.S. market
will hardly get dramatic improvements in the near term. The Group will work harder to
grow the business in some selected section. A co-ordinated, albeit customized, service
solution provided by the Group will be required to attract more premium customers.
Sportswear section is believed to be full of potential.

International manufacturing layout brings flexibilities, as well as challenges to the
Group. Since April 2017, the business of our Joint Venture factory in Vietnam has been
temporarily interrupted due to the gateway was blocked by villagers. With the support
of our business partners and local government, the Board is confident that this issue
will be solved soon. Effective risk management & internal control systems and rules
compliance are the keys to the sustainable developments of the Group. We will continue
commitment of resources toward the enhancement of risk management & internal
control systems in order to make sure the Group is one of leading players in the industry.

Environmental protection requirements by governments of different nations are higher
nowadays, the industry faces higher entry barriers. All premiums customers tend to
work more with the established factories like the Group. The Group has a very dedicated
management and operational team. The Group can attract all kind of human talents
since we can provide good opportunities through expansion. The Group is confident
to attract more premium customers and provide satisfactory return for the long term
interests of the shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IREEE

APPRECIATION EE |

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our AANERZEZREBEURKMOE, - ¥5%
customers, business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous ~ #FF « #LEE - #) & LA RRIT R bt IR
support to the Group during the period. | sincerely hope our employees will be able HAEENTZOXFBURBRHE «- AR
to grow together with the Group, enjoy their balanced life, and realise their potential DTEHRMOBE TR AEERRAER =
in the Group. RMFEEE  WEAREAREMK -

I would also thank our shareholders for their kind support and confidence in the Group ~ RATNVEH KPR RBE—FEHREE

during the past year. BIR ) STFFEE(E ©
On behalf of the Board AEERW

Wan Wai Loi E

CHAIRMAN FEK

Hong Kong, 22 June 2017 BE - 2017F6F22H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENREDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW

During the year under review, the Group has recorded lower revenue due to, including
but not limited to, the decrease of sales orders by the Group’s U.S. customers, especially
the apparel retail section.

The Group's revenue decreased by 13.5% to HK$5,993.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$6,927.6 million). The Group's sales volume decreased by 13.0%
to 155.8 million pounds for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: 179.1 million pounds)
while the average selling price decreased by 0.5% to HK$38.47 (2016: HK$38.68).

During the year under review, Gross profit decreased to HK$1,116.5 million (2016:
HK$1,302.5 million). With the help of the depreciation of the RMB against the US dollar
and the Group's major production activities are China based, the Group managed to
keep the gross profit margin at 18.6% (2016: 18.8%).

During the year under review, mainly due to the decrease of customers claims incurred,
distribution and selling expenses decreased to HK$50.8 million (2016: HK$98 million).
With the gain on the reversal of provision for impairment of interest in an associate of
HK$46.8 million (2016: HK$39.9 million), the Group maintained a net profit margin at
16.3% (2016: 16.2%). Profit for the year decreased to HK$989.2 million (2016: HK$1,122.7
million).

With our strong capability in technological and innovative products, the Group
maintained excellent relationship with a large portfolio of renowned international
brands. The top five customers and brand owners accounted for approximately 68.3%
and 76.9% respectively versus 62.2% and 74.3% of the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING AND SOCIAL REPORTING

For the year under review, the Group has continued its operating policies with
commitments on energy-conservation and emission-reduction. The Group has
regarded energy saving and green manufacturing as key components of its sustainable
developments. The results are noticeable and have been accredited by various
governments as well as industrial organisations:

“Top 10 Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction Enterprises of Guangzhou -
2016" by Guangzhou Energy Conservation Association;

"Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2016" by Federation of Hong Kong
Industries;

To propagandize the result of energy conservation and emission reduction of Chinese
textile enterprises, the Group’s Panyu factory was elected by Natural Resources Defense
Council ("NRDC") as a model of textile enterprises.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT

Our international manufacturing layout is believed to be able to provide flexibility to
the Group in response to the different requirements of customers. During review period,
the gateway of the Group’s factory in Vietnam was blocked by villagers. The operation
of our Vietnam factory has been temporarily interrupted. The People’s Committee of Hai
Duong Province has issued a written notification to request the People’s Committee of
Kim Thanh District and Lai Vu Industrial Park One Member Limited Liability Company
to clear the blockage so that the operations of the Company’s Vietnam factory can be
resumed. It is believed that at least a few more days will be required for the blockage
to be cleared.

In order to improve the environment of the country, the Chinese government has
continued to tighten the requirements for environmental protection. The rules
compliance is critical to the Group's sustainable developments. During the year under
review, the Group has invested resources to upgrade its waste water processing facilities
in Panyu factory with latest technologies. All these efforts may help to keep the Group
far ahead of the national statutory requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERENREDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$1,081.8 million
(2016: HKS$1,452.5 million), including HK$252 million, the equivalent of HK$659.3 million
in USS, the equivalent of HK$166.8 million in Renminbi, the equivalent of HK$3.1 million
in VND and the equivalent of HK$0.6 million in other currencies. The cash and bank
balances and time deposits are to finance the Group's working capital and capital
expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$471.7 million (2016: HK$686.5 million), and a
shareholder’s loan of HK$144.8 million (2016: HK$144.4 million) contributed by our joint
venture partners to our Vietnam subsidiary. The shareholder’s loan is of equity nature
and is unlikely to be repaid within one year.

For the 2017 Financial Year, the Group’s total assets amounted to HK$5,011.8 million
(2016: HKS5,431.4 million), representing a decrease of 7.7%. Non-current assets and
current assets were HK$1,889.2 million and HK$3,122.6 million, respectively. The above
assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$1,660.5 million, non-current liabilities of
HK$170.8 million, and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,177.2 million.

As at 31 March 2017, the current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets
over current liabilities) was 1.9 (2016: 1.9). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total
borrowings to total equity, was 19.9% (2016: 25.5%). As at 31 March 2017, the Group was
in a net cash position of HK$465.4 million (2016: HK$621.6 million).

The Group adopted cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital expenditure in response
to the market demand. During the year under review, total capital expenditure decreased
50.6% to HK$166.4 million (2016: HK$337 million), which was mainly used to purchase
plant and machinery, construction projects of Panyu plant and Vietnam Plant.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange
exposure. The Group hedges against the exposure and reduce the risk involved as
appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have assets pledged for the bank loans (2016:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 5,267 full-time employees (2016: 5,945). There is
no significant change in the Group’s remuneration policy. The Group's remuneration
package for its employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits,
based on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to
provide regular training and competitive remuneration packages to its staff. The Group
also provides additional benefits to its employees, such as subsidized accommodation
and meals for workers at the production facilities, and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company
has granted options to eligible employees.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK30 cents (2016: HK40 cents) per
share for the 2017 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK30 cents (2016: HK40 cents)
per share, the total dividend for the 2017 Financial Year amounted to HK60 cents (2016:
HK80 cents) per share.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES
The year ahead is generally believed a year of full of challenges and uncertainties. The
weak demands of U.S. market will hardly get dramatic improvements in the near term.
The Group will work harder to grow the business in some selected section. It is believed
that sportswear section is full of potential.

The Group has confidence in PRC economy. The Group will work harder to reinforce its
cooperation with premium customers, the value added services by the Group will be
able to attract more business from quality customers, including PRC domestic Customers.

Integration and co-ordination of different manufacturing bases cannot be achieved
without effective risk management and internal control systems. Rules compliance is
also the key to the sustainable developments of the Group. Our dedicated management
team and outstanding corporate governance system make sure the Group as one of the
leading players in the industry.

All governments have higher environmental protection requirements around the world.
All premium customers tend to select working with the established factories like the
Group. The Group's customized management and operational services help attracting
more premium customers, which will ultimately maximise the benefit to the shareholders
as a whole.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
sERAAEEARRN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 67, is an executive Director and Chairman and a founder of the
Group. Mr. Wan was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 July
2015. Mr. Wan is responsible for production of the products and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies of the Group. Mr. Wan has over 44
years of experience in the textile industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Chemical Engineering from Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the
Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 66, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman and
a founder of the Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales and marketing and the
formulation of the overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr.
Tsang has over 38 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a MBA
degree from The Open University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in Business
Economics from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in
1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Tsang ceased to act as Vice Chairman of the Board, and re-designated
as non-executive Director effective from 1 July 2017.

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 69, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over 40 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from the Hong Kong Technical College. He is the Vice Chairman of Group 3 (Dyeing and
Finishing) of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He ceased to be the member of the
General Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau was appointed as a
non-executive Director in 2007. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Lau is appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board, and re-designated as executive
Director effective from 1 July 2017.

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 54, joined the Group in 2013 and appointed as CFO on 1st
April 2014. Mr. Tou is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, he was an
executive director of a HK listed company during 2007-2012 and he has extensive
experiences in factory operations, financial management, project management and ERP
System. He is appointed as an executive Director effective from 1 July 2017, and also a
Director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 81, is a non-executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the chairman of the Group since
its inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus chairman of the Company and is a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group. He has approximately 49 years of experience
in the textile industry. Mr. Choi was educated in EfIE T K& + 2 K (School of
Architecture, South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of
the University. He is also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen City. Mr.
Choi has been awarded A BT 457T 348 & KBt 82(China Knitting Industry Lifetime
Achievement Award) by FFBIET4% T ¥ #5255 U532 £ € (4th Council of the China
Knitting Industry Association) in 2010. Mr. Choi was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 80, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and senior
partner of our Group. Mr. Ip has over 40 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Ip was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of
the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 66, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lam was responsible for
sales and marketing and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 42 years of experience in the textile industry.
Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University of Macau and a Bachelor of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a Vice Chairman of
Board of Trustee of New Asia College and Honorary Fellow of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004.
Mr. Lam has resigned as Chief Executive Officer, and re-designated as non-executive
director effective from 1 July 2015. He resigned on 22 May 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director.
He was the former chairman and is currently the non-executive director of Café de
Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company which he joined in 1984, and has
considerable experience in planning and management. Dr. Chan is also an independent
non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited in 2015 and Human
Health Holdings Limited in 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited since 2007, all five companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan ceased to be the independent non-executive director of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since August, 2015. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor
of Arts, a Master degree in City Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an
Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary
Fellow from Lingnan University. He is currently the Adviser of the Quality Tourism Services
Association, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and the
chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also being appointed by the HKSAR Government as a member of the
Business Facilitation Advisory Committee and ceased to be the member of the Task
Force on promotion of Vocational Education. Dr. Chan was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in 2007.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRAREEASEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Ng has over
30 years of senior management experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng
was a director and a member of the executive committee for Advanced Info Service
Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was an independent director
of China Digital TV Holding Co. Ltd., a New York Stock Exchange listed company and
a non-executive director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. He was the chief executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief
executive officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng is the Honorary
Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong and is the appointed member
of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established under the
Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng was a member of the
Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration. Mr.
Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Sze
has senior management experience in the private and investment banking industry
serving high net worth clients and institutions. He ceased to be the managing director,
head of China and Hong Kong of Julius Baer Bank. He was the chief executive officer
of EFG Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing
director, head of investment of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief
executive officer of Asia-Pacific for International Private Bank, Barclays Wealth and an
executive director in the private clients division at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong
Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He
is a Fellow of CPA Australia. Mr. Sze was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in 2007.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOU Yung, aged 47, joined the Group in October 2014 as Company Secretary. Mr.
Chou is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, he was
a company secretary of a HK listed company during 2007-2011 and he has extensive
experiences in financial management, corporate governance and administration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This is the sustainability report, which outlines our major members' approaches,
commitment and strategies in four aspects of sustainability — workplace quality,
environmental protection, operating practices and community involvement. The
reporting period of this report is from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. The data disclosed
in this report are prepared and provided by the respective administration departments
of Panyu plant and Vietnam plant of the Group.

VISION

“To make the world a more comfortable and better place through our products” - Pacific
Textiles is a creative and sizeable knitted fabric manufacturer and marketer whose
business scope covers integrated services of knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing.

MISSION

“In global textile community, we strive for:

- Quality products and services;

- Equitable opportunities and respect;
- High returns to the investors;

- Excellent environmental protection;

through the faith of social responsibilities and innovation.” - Pacific Textiles considers
green manufacturing and environment protection not only as the responsibility of
a responsible enterprise citizen, but also as the basis of long-term viability for any
enterprises. Pacific Textiles has been actively taking steps to ensure that by-products
from its manufacturing facilities are disposed of with minimal effects to the environment
and trying its best to achieve a harmonious development of the enterprise, natural
environment and all stakeholders.

WORKING ENVIRONMENT

Each employee is required to sign an employment contract and receipt of hazardous
notice of occupational health to job holder as referred to the local government
requirements and it mainly covers the job title and duties; work hours; rest period;
statutory benefits and preventive measures for occupational hazards etc. We conduct
assessment on labor working environment to ensure good and safe working conditions
for our employees in terms of light, noise, air, dust, wind, gas, etc. All related factors have
been managed in accordance with the standard of local government. We also provide
our employee proper PPE to prevent potential labor accident and minimize the influence
on employee’s health: ear plug, goggles, dust respirator, mask, rubber gloves/boots,
insulated shoes, apron, hair net, safety belt, etc. Annual health check is conducted for
all employees to help employees and the company knows their health status and has
proper arrangement of work as well as medical treatment, if necessary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 HEUARERRE

EMPLOYEES’ BASIC INFORMATION

As of March 2017, 4,344 employees were under full-time employment in Panyu plant
(previous year: 5,000); age range from 18-60 and come from various provinces of
Mainland China. About 35% (previous year: 5%) for age group from 18-30 and come
from various provinces of Mainland China.

As of March 2017, total 848 employees are hired for full employment in Vietnam
plant (previous year: 729). Vietnam plant’s employees come from different provinces
nationwide, but majority is local resident. Vietnam plant implements hiring health
checking for new employees to ensure a healthy labor force for effective and efficient
production.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Panyu plant attaches great importance to production safety management and
occupational health management. It spared no effort to consistently implement the
occupational health and safety policy of “Compliance, care, safety, health, inspection
of hidden dangers, risk control, safety guarantee, full participation, aggressiveness,
promotion of harmonious development’, firmly enforced a policy of “Observing laws
and regulations, dedicating to control and minimize safety risks and adhering to the
principle of people-oriented so as to provide a safety and healthy working environment
and living environment for employees’, proactively carried out works in terms of safety
production standardization, established a management system of safety production
standardization and also obtained certification of OHSAS18001 Occupational Health
and Safety management system.

In Vietnam plant, labor health and safety is in a prior consideration for mill setting in
Vietnam and several measures and procedures were set to guarantee the safe and
healthy working circumstance all throughout period of working participation in the
factory. Health check service is provided in Vietnam plant to all employees when new
recruited or annually for enrolled colleagues. Meanwhile, an internal clinic was set in 24
hours service for any emergency aid just in case. Working environment in Vietnam plant
is regularly sampled and checked by third parties every three months for noise level,
particle level and other parameters that may affect work health. Besides health check
and working environment inspection, the Vietnam plant also found a team for internal
safety controlling on fire-fighting safety and work safety. Fire-fighting devices, PPEs for
works that involve patent dangers or injury were well equipped and managed by the
team and under periodical review and reporting.

FATALITY NUMBER AND RATE

There is not observed any mortality related to working in Panyu plant.

There is not observed any mortality related to working in Vietnam plant.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

LOST DAYS DUE TO WORK INJURY

In 2016, the lost working days due to work injury of Panyu plant was 1,553 man-days
(previous year: 2,164 man-days).

Vietnam plant has established arrangement of compensating working hours due
to injury during work hour: if any employee had labor accident, company will pay
compensation working hour for employee by payment for total working hours that they
must leave working for health treatment.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES

In terms of safety production management, Panyu plant conducted thorough hazards
identification and risk assessment annually and established risk control measures
and necessary emergency practice for important hazards. Safety executives from all
departments who have participated in pre-job professional trainings and have passed
tests and obtained qualifications manage and control the significant sources of hazards
and comprehensively control the potential safety hazards, so as to minimize work safety
incidents. In terms of occupational health management, Panyu plant invited Guangdong
Prevention and Treatment Center for Occupational Diseases to assess the occupational
hazards for all job posts of the Company. According to the assessment result, Pacific
Textiles carries out protection from occupational hazards for relative job posts and
occupational health protection for employees and conducts occupational health checks
annually, so as to guarantee employees’ physical health.

Vietnam plant adopts Occupational Health and Safety Measures and related execution
and observation procedures:

Check health periodically to find out occupation disease;
Supply personal protective equipment for employee;
Periodically testing and maintaining the machinery, equipment, workshops;

Occupation health & safety committee will patrol periodically to find out unusual
problem that related with working safety;

Organization safety training for employee periodically as local government
requirement (External training);

Establish Fire-fighting plan and organization practice every year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 HEUARERRE

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Panyu plant set up standing policies and training programs on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Those policies and programs
coverage have included induction course for general workers, internal and external job
training courses for university level, fundamental and middle level of employees. In 2016,
those training activities also included “How to effectively motivate and manage new
generation employees’, “Effective Management Skills’, English and Vietnamese Language
training courses. As a whole, it was about 2.50 monthly training hours per employee in
Panyu plant (previous year: 1.96 monthly hours).

Effective Management Skill

Learning Method Training
&5 AE

Vietnam plant provides orientation training: all newly hired employees are required
to join the orientation training covering internal regulations on compensations and
benefits, labor discipline, health and safety, firefighting, job and operational needs.
Vietnam plant also provides annual training and irregular training:

Annual training will be provided in terms of internal regulations and health and
safety for all employees, fire-fighting;

The company arranges periodical training for different groups of employees in
referred to local regulations including safety operation training for forklift driver,
waste management in-charge, boiler operator, chemical management in-charge,
first aider, etc.

Irregular training courses is conducted based on actual request of each department
to improve working capability of employees such as elementary occupational

certificate for boiler operators, forklift driver, crane operator.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

LABOR STANDARDS

As required by the company employment policy and our foreign customers, no child
and forced labor will be permitted for employment in Panyu plant.

As internal policy, no child labor is hired under any circumstance in Vietnam plant. Hiring
in-charge staff is trained to perform interview techniques to ensure hired employees
in compliance with the company standards. Also, no forced labor is allowed in the
Vietnam plant. All employees work here in voluntary willing basis. Vietnam plant sets up
procedure to receive employee’s feedback on all issues including child labor and forced
labor. If any case of non-compliance is reported, an investigation will be carried out to
settle the case and prevent the repetition.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Panyu plant’s policies in respect of energy management are: proactively utilizing
advanced energy-saving technologies, striving to research and develop low-consumption
processes, constantly improving energy utilization efficiency and promoting energy
consumption level towards international-advanced level. Panyu plant proactively
utilized advanced energy-saving technologies, undertook several industrial and national
demonstration projects, worked hard on the research and development of energy-saving
processes and technologies, and achieved good energy-saving efficiency.

The aggregate energy consumption of Panyu plant for 2016 was standard coal of 162,000
tons (previous year: 180,300 tons), and the energy consumption decreased by 18,300
tons of standard coal as compared with 2015.

In 2016, Panyu plant won the “Top 10 Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
Enterprises of Guangzhou” To propagandize the results of energy conservation and
emission reduction of Chinese textile enterprises, Panyu plant was elected by NRDC
as a mode of textile enterprises which gained outstanding achievements to shoot
promotion videos.

Panyu plant adopted a transfer processing system with regard to treatment of hazardous
wastes in compliance with the relevant policy requirements, under which entities
obtaining necessary qualifications are entrusted to conduct unified treatment. A
qualified treatment rate of 100% was achieved in respect of hazardous wastes. The
Company entrusted relevant entities to recycle, reuse and comprehensively treat the
non-hazardous wastes, and achieved a comprehensive treatment rate of 100%.

Panyu plant promoted the utilization of clean energy and the optimization of resource
utilization structure in an active manner. In particular, in 2014, it carried out the 402KW
solar photovoltaic power generating project and the solar heating steam project, to be
the pioneer among the industry in using solar clean energy to replace partially fossil
energy like coal, aiming at reducing energy consumption and minimize emission of
exhaust gas pollutants and COx.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 HEUARERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Contd)

Principal measures adopted by Panyu plant in mitigating emissions of exhaust gases
from boiler stations of thermal power plants include:

Newly installing the inside-boiler calcium injection desulfuration device, enhancing
raw coal sourcing criteria and purchasing coal with lower sulfur and ash;

Carrying out modification works in order to enhance the criteria for emissions from
boiler station.

Panyu plant has achieved:

Improvement in exhaust gas emission criterion from SO2<200mg/m? to SO2<50mg/
m3;

Reduction in annual SOz emission of 180.2 tons.
Principal measures adopted by Panyu plant in mitigating wastewater emissions include:

Newly equipped with magnetic levitation blowers in biochemical treatment section,
to save energy by approximately 20% and improve water quality of the discharge
water;

Construction of new wastewater treatment plants, to further improve water quality
of the discharge water and increase reuse of wastewater.

Panyu plant has achieved: improvement in executive standards for the maximum
wastewater discharging concentration (direct discharging) of newly established
enterprises set out in Form 2 of the Discharge Standards of Water Pollutants for Dyeing
and Finishing of Textile Industry (GB4287-2012).

Principal measures adopted by Panyu plant in mitigating greenhouse gas emissions
include: carrying out energy-saving technology modification works in order to reduce
the Company’s consumption of coal and purchased electricity.

Panyu plant has achieved: reduction in greenhouse gas emission of 2,850 tons (previous
year: 23,524 tons reduction).

Vietnam plant conducts quarterly assessment and analysis on environment covering
waste water and air emission from boiler to ensure Company’s operation does not have
negative impact to surrounding environment and in compliance with local government
standards. All kinds of waste including living waste, industrial waste, especially hazardous
waste are classified and treated properly by permitted contractors. Some kinds of wastes
like nylon, scrap fabric can be recycled for cleaning purpose. Energy saving practice is
concerned from small action to turn off unnecessary and un-used electrical equipment.
Vietnam plant also reserves certain percentage of land within company premise for
planting trees, grass that helps to improve the air quality and landscape as well.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Contd)

Vietnam plant takes very serious of reduce, recycle and reuse of pollutants:

Reuse sludge generated from water and wastewater treatment plant as Bio-fuel;

Reduce gaseous pollutant discharging from origin by strictly control on coal quality
procured. i.e. low sulfur and dust content;

Recycle debris generated from boiler as raw material for other industry.

Vietnam plant has achieved:
Zero sludge disposal;
Gaseous pollutant discharging level is far below local standards;

Debris generated from boiler is fully reused by third party contractor.

In Vietnam plant, all hazardous waste is registered with local authorities. All storage
and transfer is done according to local regulations with transferring records sent by
authorized contractor. Hazardous waste is legally disposed of in compliance with local
laws. Normal waste is recycled, reused or disposed of by third parties.

Pollutant discharged from Vietnam plant during daily operation mainly includes emission
from boiler station and treated effluent after wastewater treatment system. Though
there’s not yet official regulation on installation of on-line monitoring system in Vietnam,
in a concern of real time monitoring and fast reacting to environmental safety issues,
Vietnam plant had equipped both treatment systems, either boiler or wastewater
treatment plant, with on-line monitoring system for daily observation and reporting.

Natural resources that Vietnam plant utilized are river water and coal. River water is
deriving from surface water nearby, specified as Rang River in Hai Duong, Vietnam. Coal
procured in local Vietnam is restricted to low sulfur and dust content, i.e. hard coal.

City Power is a main source of energy consumption in Vietnam plant.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 HEUARERRE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Yarn suppliers of Pacific Textiles mainly come from Asia, covering various countries and
regions including Mainland China (with approximately 20 yarn suppliers)/India (with
approximately 10 yarn suppliers)/Vietnam (with approximately 5 yarn suppliers)/South
Korea (with approximately 4 yarn suppliers)/Taiwan (with approximately 4 yarn suppliers)/
Indonesia (with approximately 3 yarn suppliers)/Thailand (with approximately 3 yarn
suppliers)/Pakistan (with approximately 2 yarn suppliers)/Japan (with approximately 1
yarn supplier), which minimize geopolitical risks.

Pacific Textiles pays great attention to product quality. To become a recognized yarn
supplier of Pacific Textiles, each yarn supplier has to have its yarn quality to meet the
quality standards as required by our factories. Practices are as follows:

1) FOR NEW SUPPLIERS
At first, new suppliers are required to provide sample yarn for Pacific Textiles to
conduct quality testing;

If the sample yarn passed the quality testing and the yarn price and delivery
time satisfy relevant requirements, the material department would procure a
small amount of yarn for further quality assessment;

There is a half-year assessment period for each new supplier. If the relevant
supplier delivers a stable performance in all aspects including product quality
during such period, we would promote it to be a qualified supplier.

2) FOR EXISTING SUPPLIERS
At first, existing suppliers are required to provide shipment sample in batches
for quality testing by factories of Pacific Textiles;

If the shipment sample passed the quality testing, the relevant supplier may
ship such batch of bulk yarn;

Meanwhile, quality control staff of Pacific Textiles will continue to monitor the
consistency between quality performance of shipment sample and bulk yarn
of such supplier.

Secondly, quality control staff of Pacific Textiles will update the quality conditions of each
kind of yarns (including any findings identified during the process of trial production
and bulk production) at the raw material meetings held every Tuesday.

Thirdly, every month, quality control staff of Pacific Textiles will provide comprehensive
quality assessment results of major yarns supplied for material department’s reference
in making future procurement.

Should any supplier suffer a decline in yarn quality and not be able to convince us that its

yarns will meet the quality requirements of factories of Pacific Textiles within a specified
three-month period, the material department would cease to procure from such supplier.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The products of Pacific Textiles are manufactured in strict compliance with the relevant
international standards. No products of Pacific Textiles were subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

Upon receiving a customer’s complaint on product quality, Pacific Textiles will deliver
the relevant information (office of complaint and the content of complaint) to its
quality control department to conduct investigation and analysis on the reasons and
determine the responsibilities which are divided as follows based on the sources of
defective products:

If the quality issue occurs due to materials, the material department will inform
the relevant supplier to investigate and verify and the supplier shall bear the
responsibility if it is true.

If the quality issue occurs due to manufacturing errors or process issues, the quality
control department will inform the relevant factory headquarters to investigate and
verify and the relevant factory headquarters shall bear the responsibility if it is true.

If the quality issue occurs due to improper loading and unloading during
transportation and other reasons, the carrier shall bear the responsibility.

The products of Pacific Textiles will be verified in accordance with the verification
standards as agreed with the relevant customers. Pacific Textiles has established specific
arrangements in relation to recall procedures. Upon receiving a customer’s complaint
on the quality of its products, the quality control department or the person in charge
from the relevant responsible factory headquarters will confirm recalling (as defective
products or for repairs). Then the sales personnel will inform the transportation
department to arrange for collecting the fabrics from the customer and returning the
fabrics to the relevant factory. If the products are considered to be defective, then they
will be warehoused upon confirmation by competent personnel (factory in-charged or
above). If the products need to be repaired, then they will be repaired by the relevant
factory headquarters, and won't be delivered to the relevant customer until passing
inspection.

MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS,

CONSUMER DATA PROTECTION AND PRIVACY POLICIES

Pacific Textiles respects and protects its customers’intellectual property rights, privacy
and other trade secrets. After receiving customers’ designs, Pacific Textiles will take
measures to ensure the safety of their intellectual property rights, privacy and other
trade secrets and prevent the unauthorized disclosure of such secrets.

For some products involving to intellectual property rights, Pacific Textiles will enter into
confidentiality agreements with the relevant suppliers and customers in relation to the
intellectual property rights and trade secrets.
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5 HEUARERRE

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We formulate anti-corruption policy, rules and regulations for our employees, contractors
and suppliers as well in both Panyu plant and Vietnam plant. Any contravention to the
policy, rules and regulations are identified with solid evidence, the contravened parties
of or for services will be terminated immediately.

Relevant working policy, rules, regulations and procedures will be reviewed from time to
time for avoiding repeated cases. We also set up a compliant mechanism for reporting
corrupted behavior if any.

Detailed anti-corruption procedures are well informed to all of employees, contractors
and suppliers through internal notice and business letter respectively in both Panyu plant
and Vietnam plant. The procedures cover various channels for reporting the corrupted
behavior including email, phone, letter, letter box or in person etc.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Panyu plant has solicited policies to understand and support local community needs
by using different means. Panyu plant joined the local community activities including
respectful activities for senior people, entertainment performance for local community,
visit and subsidizing money to poverty villagers, providing scholarships for outstanding
middle school students and joined the local government-organized money raising
activities for poverty by contributing money and employment of local residual manpower
etc. (About RMB150,000.)

Community Activity

HEES

Social Policy Training for Women
IR G IE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT (Cont'd)

The motto of Vietnam plant is to do business in respect of balancing company benefits
and employee’s benefits and in responsible manner to local community where the
company is located in. Vietnam plant will base on actual needs and internal resource in
each period to contribute for local resident as well as community in aspect of charitable
activities for impoverished and disable persons, local festival event or environmental
protection activities.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
=SREE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the 2017 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally engaged in
the manufacturing and trading of textile products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2017 Financial Year by geographical
location of business operation is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group's
future developments is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The following are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in
addition to those outlined below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk
The current macro economical situation is volatile. The weak demand of U.S. market will
hardly get dramatic improvements in the near term.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on achieving our strategic objectives, including
through acquisitions, joint ventures, dispositions and restructurings. The Group faces risk
in its application of its assets and capital towards suitable investments and seizure of
business and investment opportunities when such opportunities arise.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable
laws and regulations.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2017 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 60 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK 30 cents (2016: HK40 cents) per share was paid on 9 January
2017 to shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK30 cents (2016: HK40 cents) per share. Subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK30 cents will be paid on 31 August 2017
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
21 August 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 4 August 2017 to
10 August 2017 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 August 2017. Record date to
determine shareholder’s voting right is 3 August 2017.

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 17 August 2017 to
21 August 2017 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 August 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2017
Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the 2017 Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,391 million (2016: HK$2,385 million), comprising the share premium,
share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following
the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
2017 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HKSnil (2016: HK$39,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$166 million (2016: HK$337 million) was incurred during
the 2017 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2017 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2016: Nil).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares during the 2017 Financial Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2017 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 68.3% of the Group's total sales and sales to the Group's largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 46.1%. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 44.7% of the Group's total purchases and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
32.6%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had
any interests in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 150 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the 2017 Financial Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman till 1 July 2017, and re-designated as
Non-executive Director)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (Vice Chairman with effect from 1 July 2017, and re-designated as
Executive Director from Non-executive Director)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer, and appointed as Executive Director with effect
from 1 July 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (resigned on 22 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Pursuant to article 114 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Tou Kit Vai will hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company and will then be eligible for -re-election at
that meeting.
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Accordingly, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Tou Kit Vai will
retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 12 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of two years. Each service agreement will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice
in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had been
appointed for an initial term of two years with effect from 1 May 2007. The term of the
appointment has been extended thereafter. Mr. Tsang Kang Po has been appointed
as non-executive Director for an initial term of two years with effect from 1 July 2017.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the 2017 Financial Year is set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2017 Financial Year or
at any time during the 2017 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which causes
or may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the shareholders
of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2017 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

Name of Directors/
Chief Executives

B THARKESR
Ip Ping Im
04

Lam Wing Tak (resigned on
22 May 2017)
WRETE (FR20179F5 H 22 A BHE)

Lau Yiu Tong
%

Tsang Kang Po

B3R

Wan Wai Loi
FEIR

Personal
Interests

(beneficial

owner)

18 A

(BHEEAA)

14,566,000

52,501,000

1,988,000

9,497,000
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BERODES 225

AN IR NI R R R C =N
F B A RIF 20174 B B AR I BAR (] B )

BES BT E M ﬁlﬁzﬁ"ﬂ%%T
FHBAR R R SHEREAMEAE R Z RO
BExmEs -

ESRRONRERS

ZREERKR

N2017F3A31H  EERAQNRITHRAER

RARBHEEMBEEZE (EEREHFR
B RBIEXVED) BIRH ~ R GH k&S
F BBAREBEES RHAEGIIEISAEET
GEmECMmRsEREEETRAENE
RAE R Fre s KORB AT ¢

8 ed sy}

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

Family

Interests
(interests

of spouse)
REERE
(EefBzHz)

2,000,000

1,087,000

2,501,000

1,030,000

Corporate
Interests
(interests of
a controlled
corporation)
=B
(R EEZH
B oHER)

403,394,000
(Note 1)
(PfFEE1)

55,000,000
(Note 3)
(P E3)

RERTROBERESME

Approximate

percentage

of issued

share capital

Trusts and of the

similar Company

interests Total RAAF]

=Rk Interests EEETRAZ

Bl R BHABE D

~ 405,394,000 28.03%

100,000,000 115,653,000 8.00%
(Note 2)
(FF5E2)

- 52,501,000 3.63%

- 59,489,000 4.11%

- 10,527,000 0.73%
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share capital is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im.

2. These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued share
capital is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. The issued share capital of BLWT
Company Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of
the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak (resigned on 22 May 2017). For the purpose of the
SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.

3. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital
is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017 none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company, had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

At no time during the 2017 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND T ERFRKEMATRRONEERS 2
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES ERRARE

As at 31 March 2017 the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of ~ 201753318 » IREBEARAIREFKHE
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the &I FE336{FREFE 2 ELMPTRLE - AT
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuantto AL (BEHARATTHRATGKIN) RARA
Section 336 of the SFO: AR AR RIRR 1D R HE B i SOA R

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES B z#E

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

BFERITROBERERMES
Approximate
Corporate percentage
Interests of issued
Personal Family (interests of share capital
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and of the
(beneficial (interests  corporation) similar Company
owner) of spouse) EE R interests Total RAEAT
Name of shareholders PN XBEREE  (ALEEs Btk Interests BRTRAZ
BRREE S8R (BEZ#EAA) (BEzER) ElzZ#&R) Bl s RSB BHABESH
Chiu Bo Lan 1,030,000 9,497,000 - 10,527,000 0.73%
HE R (Note 1)
(FH7E)
Lam Wai Yee 2,000,000 403,394,000 - - 405,394,000 28.03%
MEE (Note 2)
(P7E2)
Far East Asia Limited 403,394,000 - - - 403,394,000 27.89%
(Note 3)
(FH$7E3)
Wong Bik Ha 1,087,000 14,566,000 = 100,000,000 115,653,000 8.00%
HEE (Note 4) (Note 5)
(Pfi5E4) (BF3ES)
BLWT Company Limited = = = 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 5)
(FH3ES)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND T ERFRREMATRRONEERS 2
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

Name of shareholders

BRREE B8

Fifth Element Enterprises Limited

HSBC International Trustee Limited

Wong Mei Ling

S

Top Strong Holdings Limited

Personal
Interests
(beneficial
owner)

PN £
(EZ#EBAN)

2,501,000

55,000,000
(Note 7)
(PfF5E7)

BiRk%R (8)

B ziFR (&)

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

Family

Interests
(interests

of spouse)
REERE
(EefBzHz)

1,988,000
(Note 6)
(P sE6)

32 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report

Corporate
Interests
(interests of
a controlled
corporation)
E B
(R RS
ERzER)

55,000,000
(Note 7)
GEYD)

RERTROBERESME

Trusts and
similar
interests Total
=Rk Interests
Bl AR
100,000,000 100,000,000
(Note 5)
(BT 5ES5)
100,000,000 100,000,000
(Note 5)
(BT EES)
- 59,489,000
- 55,000,000

Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
of the
Company
RAAE
ERTREZ
BB

6.91%

6.91%

4.11%

3.80%



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, a Director.
2. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

3. Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.
4. Ms.Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director (resigned on 22 May 2017).

5. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. BLWT
Company Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of
the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the
founder of the family trust.

6. Ms.Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

7. Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by Ms.
Wong Mei Ling, the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ANY OTHER MEMBER
IN THE GROUP
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g KR (F)

ROZHR (8
et

1. BERZTRESFEREEZERRB -
2. MEBLXIREZEMMELEZES -

3. FarEast Asia Limited (2 BEE M L A 2 S
ﬁ °

4, BEERITAESMERELE (R2017F5A8
LEFHE) 2B -

5. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited#
BLWT Company Limited2EEA  HSBC
International Trustee Limited BARERE A2
KIEEFEZEFEA - 2EHABLWT Company
Limited 2 #25 » BLEF LB GHIME - #
KB ERRIEETZEIPA -

6. BXRNIREECREEALEZMRE -

7. BEREFREERHERRBEERZ LTS RIBERTop
Strong Holdings Limited Z 50% %5 °

RESEEMEMREAR 2RO REER
2R

Approximate

percentage

of issued

Nature of share capital

Name of members Name of Number of issued shares RERT

of the Group substantial shareholders interest B 1T ‘Az

AEBRE AR EHE FTERRER EEME RGEE BB

Teejay Lanka PLC Brandix Lanka Limited 1 Beneficial owner 232,198,344 33.24%
EnlEAA

PCGT Limited Crystal Peak International Limited 2&3  Beneficial owner 975,000 25.00%
B B PR B BR A A 2R3 EBmBEAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ANY OTHER MEMBER

IN THE GROUP (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. Teejay Lanka PLC (formerly known as “PT Sri Lanka") is owned as to 28.05% by Pacific
Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and 33.24%
by Brandix Lanka Limited.

2. PCGT Limited is owned as to 75% by Pacific GT Limited and 25% by Crystal Peak
International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crystal International Group Limited
(formerly known as “Crystal International Limited”).

3. Pacific GT Limited is owned as to 95% by Product Champion Limited, a wholly- owned
subsidiary of the Company, and 2.5% by GSI Trading Hong Kong Limited and 2.5% by
Toray Industries (H.K.) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2017, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

34 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report

TERRRAEMATRRONEBRSD 2

EnkifR (8)

RASEEMEARE DR 2R REER G

2HE ()
CEX

1. Teejay Lanka PLC (BI#E [PTHTERR] ) A
AN aE] 2 2B M B A RlPacific Textured Jersey
Holdings Ltd.# %5 28.05%%# % K& Brandix Lanka
Limited 5 33.24% & 25 °

2. PCGT LimitedHPacific GT Limited 5 75%1&
#x K Crystal International Group Limited (Rl
B [RICEEERAF] ) 22EAWBAR]
R BB A IR A BB 25% s -

3. Pacific GT Limited AR R Z 2 EMME A A
Product Champion Limited {8 95%% 25 & EF
EEBERAAFEA25%EZLEE (F
&) BRAREER25%ERS

BEXHBEEES  BEAEERAATT
BHFT A - 12017938318 - BEEE A
TRAR ARG FAAMB G PR REES
REE OB 336 AT R 2 BRM AR
ZRRERAR o



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the Company passed on 27
April 2007, the Company adopted the Share Option scheme subject to the terms and
conditions therein. Refer to an announcement of 11 October 2013 for grant of 10,000,000
share options of the Company (the “2nd Grant”) and the previous grant of 22,820,000 on
18 July 2007 (the “1st Grant”), the options shall expire on 10 October 2023 and 17 July
2017 respectively. The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates of the 1st Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share
respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person’, namely an employee,
director or non-executive director (including INED) of any Member of the Group.

“"Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company, subsidiaries
or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated companies of
the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the Share Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

36

3. Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”), representing
143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date
of grant of the option.

. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a) General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the Listing
Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant

(a) Exercise price
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder which
shall not be less than the higher of:
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1Y
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) ERE:ra (8)
A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) A. BRESTESE ()
6. Exercise price and payment on grant (Cont'd) 6. THEERFHBEBMAR (F)
(a) Exercise price (Contd) (a) 7TIE1E (&)
(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days () EEBRERLDBEHAIOES
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the ¥ARBBTE B RERA
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets; TR 2 FHUTE
(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily (ii) EAﬁﬁﬂngTﬁ A EAR R B 22 P
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and BEMEBEBRMA TG 2 W
B &
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares. (il) Petn 2 EME °
(b) Payment on grant (b) BT
Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option EERATHEREMARTES
granted to them. 2 BEIRRE RS R -
7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme 7. BRRESTEIE RN B RN
The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight on the day BTSN EZE ETM RS 108
immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date. FEmE AR —BEZREBEFRL -
B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY B. NRBERH ZERE
As at 31 March 2017, all options under the 1st Grant were fully exercised, options M201783A318 - IEE— XL 2B
under the 2nd Grant to subscribe for an aggregate of 9,250,000 Shares granted to R T2ITE - REBEEBRESS 21K
eligible full-time employees on 11 October 2013 pursuant to the terms of the Share HR203F1I0ANBRTEERZBE
Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows: 8 DARRHE & £9,250,0000% % 15 2 B KX

HZ B ARTTRE - BRAFBOT :

Number of share options
BREHE

Exercise Price As at Changes during the period As at
i@ 01/04/2016 L) 31/03/2017
Grantee Date of Grant HKS$ Exercisable Period R2016% Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited R2017%
ERA RiEAH BT L) 4818 Rit I ¥ L 3A31A
Fligible Employees  18/07/2007 (1st Grant) ($— ) S04 18/07/2010-17/07/2017 = = = = = =
£ERES 11/10/2013 (2nd Grant) (EZRRIE) 998 11/10/2016-10/10/2023 9,900,000 e 5 s 650,000 9,250,000

BEXRAHBIERERATE | 2016/2017 F3R 37



DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESRAS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

B.

OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of HK$1.85
per share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model"). The significant inputs into
the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the date of grant of
HK$9.98 per share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 2.09%, an expected
option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of 45% and annual dividend
yield of 9%. HK$2,856,000 amortised fair value of share options for the 2017 Financial
Year was charged to the consolidated income statement (2016: HK$3,959,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because
change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value
of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements also constitute continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions not exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.33 respectively:

38
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESRAE

TEEERS (B)

(1) M@K EEREREH AR

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

Sale and purchase of knitted fabrics to Crystal International Group Limited (“Crystal”)
together with its subsidiaries ("Crystal Group”) and associates pursuant to the new
agreement (the “Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric New Master
Agreement”) dated 26 June 2015 between the Company and Crystal relating to
sale and purchase of knitted fabric manufactured or owned by the Group with term
extended to 31 March 2018. Details of the Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of Knitted
Fabric New Master Agreement and annual caps were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 26 June 2015. Transactions under the Crystal Group Sale and
Purchase of Knitted Fabric New Master Agreement for the 2017 Financial Year did
not exceed the annual cap of HK$2,000 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Crystal, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT
Limited, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and hence a connected person of the
Company. Crystal Group is therefore also regarded as connected person of the
Company.

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected transactions in the
paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a whole.

Pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information”and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has
issued an unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in the paragraph above
in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

MR ¥ A X "] HdCrystal International Group
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(2) SALE OF PRODUCTS TO HC COMPANIES

The Group sells knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi has substantial
interest (the "HC Companies”). Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung
(a Director), and hence he and the HC Companies, are regarded as connected
persons of the Company by virtue of Listing Rule 14A.07. Transactions with HC
Companies were on normal commercial terms where all percentage ratios on
an annual basis were less than 0.1%, and were fully exempted under Listing Rule
14A.76(1).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the 2017 Financial Year and discussed with the management
and the auditor of the Company on the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and internal controls and financial reporting matters.

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, updated “Terms of Reference” for Audit Committee was accepted in March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 41 to 53 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of subsequent event are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statement.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2017 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor
of the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 22 June 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance to
enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard interests of shareholders of
the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure that business activities and decision making processes are properly regulated.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company throughout the 2017 Financial Year.

With effect from 1 July 2015, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, the chairman and an executive director,
has been appointed as the chief executive officer, and hence the Company does not
comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer in Mr. Wan provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of the Group’s business
strategies currently and in the foreseeable future. The Group will nevertheless review
the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code throughout the 2017 Financial Year.

THE BOARD

The overall management of business of the Group is vested to the Board. The Board
is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives of
the Group and ensuring that interest of shareholders are protected. Daily operations
and administration of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and the
management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently has 9 members consisting of 3 executive Directors, 3 non-executive
Directors and 3 INEDs. Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 12 of this
annual report and are available on the website of the Company. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among Directors. The list of
Directors and their role and function are published on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with Directors having sales and marketing
experience and technical knowledge in fabric business, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill is appropriate for effective
decision making, taking into account the nature and scope of business operations and
development of the Group. The Board considers that each of the Non-executive Directors
and INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont'd)

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors
and management in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

THE BOARD MEETING

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year
has been informed to each Director. The attendance record of the Directors is set out in
the table on page 43 of this annual report.

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Board held 4 meetings to approve interim and final
results announcements, interim report and annual report, to consider dividend policy,
to discuss significant issues and general operation of the Company.

Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given opportunity to
include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the Board
meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background
information and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management for further information and
enquiries. The Company Secretary and senior management attends all the meetings
of the Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the directors/
substantial shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the Board meeting.
Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the
quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal whatsoever in which he or any of his associates (including any person
who would be deemed to be an “associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has
any material interest, except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board
meeting is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly made in
the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

THE BOARD MEETING (Cont'd)

Directors have access to advices and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes of the Board/
Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details, the matters considered by
participants of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded to participants for
comments within a reasonable time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary,
which are open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow
the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT THE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and AGM during the
2017 Financial Year are set out as follows:

Board
EER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FEREE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (TEFETHAER) 4/4
Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman) BERLE (FFE) 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHUTES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung - 3e dap e 1/4
Mr. IP Ping Im RmtkE 4/4
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong ARzEE 3/4
Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Resigned on 22 May 2017)  #&&f& %4 4/4

(BR2017F5 A 22 B EET)

INEDs BYFHTES

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael R EL 24
Mr. NG Ching Wah MBEERE 4/4
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel HEEREAE 3/4

Committee
ERZEE
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Meetings attended/Meetings held
HEEEAE EHEAY

Audit Remuneration Nomination

AGM
BRABFAE

Committee

RtzEE

Committee

FHEEE

N/A /1 11 1
N/A /1 11 1
N/A N/A N/A /1
N/A N/A N/A /1
N/A N/A N/A /1
N/A N/A 1/2 /1
4/4 /1 71 /1
4/4 11 71 /1
4/4 11 1 01
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

With effect from 1 July 2015, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, the chairman and an executive director,
has been appointed as the chief executive officer, and hence the Company does not
comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer in Mr. Wan provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of the Group’s business
strategies currently and in the foreseeable future. The Group will nevertheless review the
structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances. The Board is headed
by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the assistance of the
Vice Chairman, Mr. Tsang Kang Po (Vice Chairman, till 1 July 2017, and re-designated a
non-Execute Director).

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and be provided with adequate
information in a timely manner. Mr. Lau Yiu Tong is appointed as Vice Chairman effective
from 1 July 2017, and re-designated as Executive Director from non-Executive Director.

INEDS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise
throughout the 2017 Financial Year.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a Director of the Company and of the business and operating activities and
development of the Company. Every Director is required to devote sufficient time and
involvement in the affairs of the Board and material matters of the Company and to
serve the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise,
qualification and professionalism.

Each executive Director is responsible for management of the different functions of
business of the Group.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their opinion on
business strategy of the Company and reviewed financial and operation performance
of the Group.

The INEDs serve relevant function of bringing independent judgement on issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The INEDs are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

All Directors have been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and regulatory
matters to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under applicable
laws and regulations. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each
Director and has been updated.
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MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of the latest operations
and performance of the Group and to monitor and ensure the management carry out
directions and strategies set by the Board correctly and appropriately.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a Director to fill
a casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who
are experienced and competent and able to fulfill fiduciary duties and duties of skill,
care and diligence would be recommended to the Board.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at the AGM, the
shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are published on the website of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years and each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to
the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for a specific
term of two years. The term of the appointment has been extended thereafter.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election pursuant
to the Articles.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive and tailored
induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of our factory in China
on the first occasion of his appointment.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the next following general meeting after appointment.

At every AGM, one-third of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by
the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall be
taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but
shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details
made available to shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on their
re-election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely
disclosed to shareholders by announcement and shall include in such announcement,
reasons given by the Director for his resignation.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company from time to time updates
the Directors on the latest development on the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Cont'd)

According to the training record provided by the Directors, a summary of training record
of all Directors during the 2017 Financial Year is as follows:

Corporate
governance
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Topics on training covered
EHIFTRE R ERE

Listing Rules and Risk and financial

regulatory updates management

EEER

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FERESE B
Mr. TSANG Kang Po BRI E
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung gagpkE B
Mr. IP Ping Im S g
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong BBRRSE B
Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Resigned on MEELRE (BER

22 May 2017) 201745 A22HEEE) B
INEDs BIYFHTES
Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRIGHIE T A, B
Mr. NG Ching Wah hEELE A B
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel MBS S A B

Type of trainings

A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

B. Reading materials

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each chaired by different
INED, to assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the
Board meetings.

The revised terms of reference setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been reviewed by the Board with reference to the CG Code and are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties

and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing,
overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel; Mr. Ng Ching Wah
and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow
of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the
auditor, the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2017
Financial Year and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The
Annual Report for the 2017 Financial Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2017 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Audit Committee in respect of 2017 Financial Year included approving
the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor; reviewing
the unaudited interim financial information and interim results announcement for the six
months ended 30 September 2016; reviewing the audited annual financial information
and final results announcement for 2017 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group's
internal audit department, assessing the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk
management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the whistleblowing
policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The attendance of the Directors
for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the table on page 43 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor.

For 2017 Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company’s auditor were as follows:

Audit Services EZRTE
Non-audit Services IEEZRTE
- Tax consultation services — B R RS

48 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report

EZRZEE (8)

EREEY

EZEZ B EN2007F4827BK - EBES
EHEMCEERATIEGT BEREET2FE
RE AR BELREEAEEZUBER
B - RRERERANPEE R FRRK -

BERLZBECRERBEKLE  MBESL
ERRRAE L (RERBIIFRTES) -
BERELE  BRMEMEAMREERE
B RERZEEEXR -

ERZBRCNEEERRAZBMBEH AL
B2017F M BFEZRERFEHE P BER
REAEEMRRAZGTHRARER - 2017
FURFEZFROBBEREZEGEHN -

BZZEBER2017FHRFEBERITT4X
€H - BREE SN 07ENREECETT
2 E BB B IR A INIE AR LA 2 B AT AR X
(BEHE)  BEEZ=2016F98308 1<
BAZAEEZTHYHERRFHEER
& BENIVFEMBRFELEZEFVHE
BREFEENE  BEREERIBEI
2T FHEAREE 2 BRER RGEAE
BEPR R 2 PR I R B AR BB R 2 R B
BHRERBR2EH EEHEEREEY
CREEHNAFREBEZRA -

ERZBRCRAERCEE - BRIEAK
et ARARBREEN B T BIE o

FR017FEMBFE - AR B RBENATIR A9
BERYFRECRB 2 EROT

2017 2016
20175 201645
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
2,645 2,623
39 39



BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor and concluded that in their opinion such services did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing year and
the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
with due regard to diversity of the Board and management of the Board succession.

The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Dr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang Kang Po (ceased to be a
member since 1 July 2017) and Mr. Wan Wai Loi (who are executive Directors). Mr. Lau
Yin Tong is appointed as a member since 1 July 2017. Mr. Ng Ching Wah is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2017 Financial Year and adopted the
board diversity policy (“the Policy”). The Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of factors, including but not limited to educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, industry experience, age, gender and
ethnic origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and relevant provisions
under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and ethnic origin will not be set
when short-listing of director’s candidates. The major work performed by the Nomination
Committee in respect of the 2017 Financial Year included assessing independence of the
independent non-executive directors and make recommendation in compliance with
the Policy on re-election of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong and Mr. Ng Ching Wah as
Directors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. The attendance of the Directors for
the Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 43 of this annual
report. Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, Mr. Tou Kit Vai appointed as executive
director effective from 1 July 2017, will hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as Director.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, a separate ordinary resolution will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting to approve the re-election of Mr. Ng as an INED.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N -
e é/ﬁ#&%

ERZESCRIARARBEMEHR 22
HIEBEIRT  BRRAERBLTTERE
B2 Bt -

ERLZBRRNESRERENBEEIRUK
BEFMEBIR/ARR TFE ZINERE
B WEEREERRBFASRZBMR

E=3
ax °

REZEY

REZ B LR2007F4 8278 - HBES
EHPEEATAER - BRREE8E X2
BEANRETES  BEZEREEERZTL
MEEREAZEERNEERIEHES -

REZEBEZREAMBELE R E
T MRS E (BRERBYIFERNITES)
AR R E (B2017F7A 1 B TNEE
ERE) RFEREE (BEBPTES) o
BREREB07F7ARRESZTAK
B -MBEEEERBIRREZESER -

REZBEM0I7FHPRFEEHBET T
REBARBNTEERZITMEERE ([ZK
KD BRI ETRAABREERZ T
- R RFEESRNMANE - BRX
BeREZTEHER  BEEBTRRHES
= BEER KL TELR Fik
MR RER - UAREREARB ZEBRIFERK
REBERZREZBBRGX - RESFHREA
REE - BTERENFR - ERIFERS
RR - IREBEZEGR017FVRFEDET
ZIERE BRI MBI NITERE B
M ARREERRBFRAS LAEEFE
KL - BREAERMBELREEELAR
REEZEEREBZBRELES - EEHY
FRAZESEACHHANANFRESBAELZ
R RBERMAFE 1406 HEREER
ZERBITEE  B2017F7A1RRER
ETHBEEARRAR TERRRE AL B4
BRIMESERES -

RIBEEASTRSTRMRICEA43MR - R
BFERg FHREBYEBRER  HLESE
BOEERBIYIFRNITES -

BEXRAHBIERERATE | 2016/2017 F3R 49



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N -
1F é/ﬁ#&%

BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management of the Group with reference
to the nature of their work, complexity of the responsibilities and performance and
to make recommendations to the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any
discussion about his own remuneration.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze
Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are INEDs) and Mr. Tsang Kang Po (ceased
to be a member since 1 July 2017) and Mr. Wan Wai Loi (who are executive Directors). Mr.
Lau Yiu Tong is appointed as a member since 1 July 2017. Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2017 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2016 Financial Year included
reviewing the remuneration of the Directors and senior management with reference
to the remuneration level of directors and senior management of comparable listed
companies. The attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out in the table on page 43 of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors’ fee shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time
be determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities
and subject to a review by the Remuneration Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As an employee of the Company, Mr. Chou Yung, the Company Secretary that
supports the Board by ensuring the Board procedures are followed, advising the Board
on governance matters and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors. During the 2017 Financial Year, Mr. Chou undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge. Profile
of Company Secretary is set out on page 12 of this annual report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2017 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of financial position
of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Company'’s interim report and annual report are prepared and published
in accordance with statutory requirements and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
in a timely manner required under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with
adequate information to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information on matters for their approval. Furthermore, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Group's performance to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibility
to shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 59 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Board acknowledges its
responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. From
time to time and at least annually, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviews
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
in order to ensure that they meet with the ever changing business environment as
well as the requirements under the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and
credibility of the review, an independent consultancy firm has been engaged to conduct
the appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board, assisted by the Audit Committee,
assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of the
Group by reviewing the investigation results of management report and internal audits,
and considered that the risk management and internal control system of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was effective and adequate.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to time
reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems in order to ensure that they meet with
the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the 2017 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and training programmes
and budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee with
assistance of an international independent risk consulting firm.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has established a policy on disclosure of insider information to ensure insider
information of the Company remains confidential until proper dissemination of such
information to the public is made in equal and timely manner as required under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with shareholders
and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy of information disclosure
to shareholders and to the protection in the interests of shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote effective
communication, the Group maintains a website, allowing shareholders to access
updates on the Company’s particulars where the Company’s announcements, financial
information, shareholders' communication policy and other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders through general meeting
of the Company to communicate with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, the
representative of each committee and the external auditor has attended the general
meeting to answer any questions from shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed
at general meetings on each substantially separate issue. A shareholder is permitted to
appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

The notice of AGM was sent to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the notice of all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear
business days.

VOTING BY POLL

At the general meeting, the Chairman exercised his power under the Articles to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll and explained detailed
procedures for conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders. The results
of the poll, if any, are published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one- tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures set out in the
Articles of Association of the Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company and putting forward proposals at the
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general
meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out above.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
(Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong and
Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries together
with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail address, by
post to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to ir@
pacific-textiles.com for attention of the Company Secretary.

The Board also encourages shareholders to attend general meetings to make enquiries
with the Board directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company is published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the 2017 Financial Year, there
is no change to the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 149, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2017;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Basis for Opinion (Continued)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
We considered “Revenue recognition” as a key audit matter that was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Key Audit Matter

Revenue Recognition

Refer to note 2.22 for the Group's accounting policies on revenue recognition and
note 5 for the analysis of revenue from sales of goods as recorded by the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Revenue from sales of goods for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
HK$5,993,632,000. The Group has operations in several geographical locations, and
derives revenue from sales to multiple customers.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured and the risk and reward of the products have been transferred to
the customers, which is usually at the time when the products are delivered to the
customers.

We focused on this area due to the large volume of revenue transactions derived from
sales to multiple customers in different geographical locations such that we have
incurred significant time and resources in carrying out our work in this area.
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BUBEHARES

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested management'’s key internal controls that are
present in the Group's sales process from end-to-end.

We tested samples of sales transactions against sales orders, shipping documents,
invoices and other supporting documents. To the extent that those sales have been
settled, we also reviewed bank remittance advices and/or bank statements in support
of the payments made by the customers.

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly before and after
the balance sheet date to assess whether sales transactions were recognized in the
correct reporting periods.

Our work also included testing of a sample of revenue-related journal entries by
inquiring management of their nature and inspecting the relevant supporting
documents.

We found that the Groups' sales transactions being tested were recognized in a
manner consistent with the Group's revenue recognition accounting policy.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Leung Po Wah, Pauline.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 June 2017
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FEBRK
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE2017F3A31AILFE

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TF#E T FHT
Revenue WA 5 5,993,632 6,927,614
Cost of sales SHE AR 23 (4,877,148) (5,625,110)
Gross profit EF 1,116,484 1,302,504
Other income and other gains/(losses) — net HEUgA R E Uz (E518) 22
— FHE 118,200 80,688
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHERS 23 (50,764) (97,983)
General and administrative expenses — R RATHFEX 23 (126,471) (125,816)
Operating profit R F 1,057,449 1,159,393
Finance income MEUA 25 12,004 22,544
Finance costs ZUR AN 25 (12,407) (18,200)
Share of profits of associates DIEEE R Z 9 32,375 36,311
Reversal of provision for impairment of A D) N - ey K ] 9
interest in an associate BB 46,784 39,900
(Loss)/gain on disposal of certain HE—MBE A RE TERZ 9
interest in an associate (E518) ek (393) 54,941
Profit before income tax FrisBi a7l 1,135,812 1,294,889
Income tax expense FriSHiR X 26 (146,584) (172,194)
Profit for the year FERA 989,228 1,122,695
Profit attributable to: A AT FEME T -
Equity holders of the Company ARRIEZFEA 975,573 1,125,530
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS 13,655 (2,835)
989,228 1,122,695
Earnings per share attributable to FARR A ERFFE AR
equity holders of the Company for BRRAT
the year (expressed in HK$ per share) (ABIRETTAIR)
— basic — B 27 0.67 0.78
~ diluted — s 27 0.67 0.78

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  FEMf Z Bt sE Tyl F4RE G RER Al ik 2
il

i)
2o

okt
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FRRERER

HE2017F3A8318IEFE

BBEs

2017 2016
20175 20165
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit for the year FERA 989,228 1,122,695
Other comprehensive income: Hih ZEBA -
Items that have been or may be reclassified B AJfEEF D R
to profit or loss: IEH -
Currency translation differences AN R BT = = (151,072) (111,946)
Release of available-for-sale financial assets HERFRAHEE
reserve upon disposal CRIEERE - (47)
(151,072) (111,993)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEBALLE 838,156 1,010,702
Attributable to: THATREL
Equity holders of the Company PAUNGIL- ZES PN 826,709 1,016,563
Non-controlling interests FEPE S MR A 11,447 (5,861)
838,156 1,010,702

BERMS Z MY EETY L F4R A M B |MR TR sk 2

B o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GEBEEER
As at 31 March 2017 201753 H31H

2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land use rights b5 R A 6 45,007 49,133
Property, plant and equipment W - BE & EE 7 1,447,334 1,511,148
Interests in associates REE N Az R 9 295,218 237,312
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEESHEE 10 853 1,741
Prepayments for land use rights and THEREFME  BE K 13
property, plant and equipment BB AN EIE 100,789 87,264
1,889,201 1,886,598
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 11 978,440 1,016,105
Trade and bills receivables R R EE 12 943,608 935,217
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & - BB R EMERGKIE 13 84,352 97,852
Amounts due from associates JFE MBS & 2 B FRIR 9 34,323 43,189
Short-term bank deposits EHSRITIE R 15 86,306 881,628
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEMEIER 15 995,538 570,855
3,122,567 3,544,846
Total assets EEHE 5,011,768 5,431,444
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders of ARAFERTE AELER
the Company
Share capital N 16 1,446 1,446
Share premium R mE 16 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves & 17 1,722,534 1,905,465
3,177,168 3,360,099
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR S 3,280 (8,167)
Total equity ERBR 3,180,448 3,351,932
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd) GREESEBR (B)
As at 31 March 2017 201753 H31H

2016
201745 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T THET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Borrowings BE 18 144,772 144,409
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBEE 19 26,069 28,955
170,841 173,364
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings =9 18 471,701 686,473
Trade and bills payables FERTBR AR R R 20 930,261 783,353
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B KR H b R FRIE 21 216,311 360,338
Amount due to an associate B — 5 & A A FkIE 9 1,417 2,479
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 14 = 3,704
Current income tax liabilities AETEHHAE 40,789 69,801
1,660,479 1,906,148
Total liabilities BEAE 1,831,320 2,079,512
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEEE 5,011,768 5,431,444

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  B&EMI 2 MizE Ttk S48 B A HER TN Al sk 2

55 -

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 #&EFBER2017F6 A2 B #h &GS MR E
June 2017 and were signed on its behalf: WREREEREE

Wan Wai Loi Tsang Kang Po
FERK BHEK
Director Director

EFE EF
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

GAEREBR
HE2017F3A8318IEFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RARERTEARS

Non-
Share Share controlling
capital premium Reserves Sub-total interests

B RaiE : Mt FEHEER

HK$'000 HK$'000 { HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL THT BT TAT THT
(Note 16) (Note 16)

Balance at 1 April 2015 201554 R 1A 26 1446 1453,188 2,042,081 3496,715 (2306) 3494409
Comprehensive income: 2EKA

Profit for the year EEEA - - 1,125,530 1,125,530 (2835) 1,122,695
Other comprehensive income: Ht2EUA

Currency translation differences SNERE =T - - (108,920) (108,920) (3,026) (111,946)

Release of available-for-sale financial assets &R BR A HESR

reserves upon disposal BEGE - - (47) (47) = (47)
Total other comprehensive income, LUl Nt

net of tax MBHE - - (108,967) (108,967) (3,026) (111,993)
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - 1,016,563 1,016,563 (5861) 1,010,702
Transactions with owners: BREARS
Share-based compensation R BEEZRE - - 3,959 3,959 - 3,959
Dividends RE = = (1157,138)  (1,157,138) - (1157,138)
Total transactions with owners BERARZ AT - = (1,153,179) (1,153,179) - (1,153,179)
Balance at 31 March 2016 R2016E3831H 2 £t 1,446 1,453,188 1,905,465 3,360,099 (8,167) 3,351,932
Balance at 1 April 2016 201654510 248 1,446 1,453,188 1,905,465 3,360,099 (8,167) 3,351,932
Comprehensive income: 2EHA
Profit for the year FRRT] - - 975,573 975,573 13,655 989,228
Other comprehensive income: Htt2EWA
Currency translation differences IR EE - - (148,864) (148,864) (2,208) (151,072)
Total other comprehensive income, Gl Nt

net of tax MBHE - - (148,864) (148,864) (2,208) (151,072)
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - = 826,709 826,709 11,447 838,156
Transactions with owners: HEEARS
Share-based compensation MR AERE 2 B(E - - 2,856 2,856 - 2,856
Dividends RE - - (1,01249%)  (1,012,49) - (1,012,49%)
Total transactions with owners BEBARZAE - - (1,009,640)  (1,009,640) - (1,009,640)
Balance at 31 March 2017 2017538318 248 1,446 1,453,188 1,722,534 3,177,168 3,280 3,180,448
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. ~ BEMt 2 M ZETD b E4R & IS MR N AT E 2
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

A =t
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FEREMER
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHZE2017F3A31AILFE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Cash flow from operating activities RETE B mE
Cash generated from operations %@ﬁizfﬁﬁ 29(a) 1,255,444 1,262,434
Interest paid [EENEESS (12,407) (18,200)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNEBNEH (111,295) (32,114
PRC income tax paid BRI EMEH (58,125) (46,450)
PRC dividends withholding tax paid B BRI (6,898) (24,894)
1,066,719 1,140,776
Cash flow from investing activities RETZEBBEESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYXE  BEMEE (176,542) (353,920)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEE - BEREHEZ
plant and equipment FriS 308 29(b) 4,223 3,736
Dividends received from associates W ERESE & A Bl 2 AR B 9(a) 20,761 18,705
Proceeds from disposal of certain interest in HE— g A RS TERS
an associate P18 508 9(d) = 100,268
Placement of short-term bank deposits TFARBRITIFR 15 (86,306) (881,628)
Release of short-term bank deposits BEBR R BRI T 3K 15 881,628 1,181,602
Interest income received B HF B M A 13,215 20,984
656,979 89,747
Cash flow from financing activities RMEEZEBEESRE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBTEE (214,772) (301,341)
Dividends paid BIRTARE (1,012,496) (1,157,138)
(1,227,268) (1,458,479)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBESEEBEREM (ORD)
cash equivalents HEE 496,430 (227,956)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April R4A1BZ2ERERBEEEEE 570,855 843,817
Currency translation differences ANEE YR BT = = (71,747) (45,006)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March M3A31EZESRBESEEEE 15 995,538 570,855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  FEMf Z i sE Tyl F4RE MG RER A O ik 2
Zh e

nu
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

66

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) are principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile products.
Its production bases are located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is PO. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied for all of the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets, and the recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(a) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretation to existing
standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the accounting
period beginning on 1 April 2016 and relevant to the Group. The adoption
of these amendments to standards has no material impact on the financial
positions and results of the Group for the current and prior periods.

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations -
Amendments to HKFRS 11

Equity method in separate financial statements — Amendments to HKAS
27

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception -
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Regulatory deferred accounts — HKFRS 14
Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation —
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle, and

Disclosure initiative — Amendments to HKAS 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not
effective
The following new standards, amendments and interpretations are relevant
to the Group, but are not yet effective for accounting periods beginning on
1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted:

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

or after

HKFRS 9, "Financial Instruments” 1 January 2018
HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” 1 January 2018

HKFRS 16, “Leases” 1 January 2019
Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification
and measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions” 1 January 2018

Amendments to HKAS 12, “Income taxes” 1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7, “Statement of

cash flows” 1 January 2017

68 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2016 / 2017 Annual Report

FRUBRENT (B)

2 RUEBEEFTDEABREUE (H)

2.1 IMBEXE (#)

(b) ERMFIERERLZ Fa]ERRE

BIEAT

Ty AEAEBEGREZ HE
B« el AR2E B RR
2016F41HAK 2 ST BIA &

MBI ARIE PR :

ARG E LA 5
[$RTA ]
ARG EwE LR
F155: [2RERF
BHZWA
ARG EwE LR
Fe5 [HE]
BB E LA 25
(BETAN) [ ARRD A&
EMHT ARS8
DEERETE]
ERGFTERFE 125
(BT A) [ TS %L
BB GTERIETR
CHEIE:Sin--£.3

RULT B#=
ZERBZ
FEHBEXR

20181 A1H

20181818

20191 A1H

20181 A1H
20171818

20171 818



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HFEEXHEIFESTBCRME (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

2.1 RBEE (M)
(b) EBMIEREINZ FATER R E

effective (Contd)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for investments in
debt instruments: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") and fair value through profit or loss. Classification is driven
by the entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments and their
contractual cash flow characteristics. Investments in equity instruments
are always measured at fair value. However, management can make an
irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in OCl, provided the
instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading,
changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss. For financial liabilities
there are two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value through
profit or loss. Where non-derivative financial liabilities are designated at fair
value through profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due to changes in
the liability’s own credit risk are recognized in OCl, unless such changes in
fair value would create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which
case, all fair value movements are recognized in profit or loss. There is no
subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCl to profit or loss. For financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivative financial liabilities), all
changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2

70

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not
effective (Contd)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Contd)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses —
the expected credit losses “ECL" model, which constitutes a change from the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 contains a ‘three stage’approach,
which is based on the change in credit quality of financial assets since initial
recognition. Assets move through the three stages as credit quality changes
and the stages dictate how an entity measures impairment losses and
applies the effective interest rate method. The new rules mean that on initial
recognition of a non-credit impaired financial asset carried at amortized cost
a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL is recognized in profit or loss. In the
case of accounts receivables this day-1 loss will be equal to their lifetime ECL.
Where there is a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is measured
using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL.

HKFRS 9 applies to all hedging relationships, with the exception of portfolio
fair value hedges of interest rate risk. The new guidance better aligns hedge
accounting with the risk management activities of an entity and provides
relief from the more “rule-based” approach of HKAS 39.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEXEHEFITEHBEME (4)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 2.1 REEE (F)
(b) ERM{ERERZ FTETER R E

(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

effective (Contd)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Contd)

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments particularly
in the year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize through a 5-step
approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(2) Identify separate performance obligations in a contract;

(3) Determine the transaction price;

(4) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations;

(5) Recognize revenue when performance obligation is satisfied.

The core principle is that a company should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away from a revenue
recognition model based on an ‘earnings processes’ to an ‘asset-liability’
approach based on transfer of control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b)

New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not
effective (Contd)
HKFRS15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Contd)

HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalization of contract cost
and license arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers.

Management is currently assessing the impact of applying HKFRS 15 on
the Group’s financial statements by identifying the separate performance
obligations in the contracts with customers and allocating the transactions
price, which could affect the timing of the revenue recognition.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and
measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about the leasing activities of
both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from HKFRS 16 is that most
operating leases will be accounted for on balance sheet for lessees. The
standard replaces HKAS 17 ‘Leases’, and related interpretations.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEXHEIFESTHBERYE (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

2.1 IMBEXE (#)
(b) EBMIEREINZ FATER R E

effective (Contd)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Contd)

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group's operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the Group only has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$864,000 (Note 31). Management does
not consider the adoption of this standard will have material impact on the
financial position of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification and measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions”

The HKICPA has issued amendments to HKFRS 2, ‘Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions. These amendments
clarify the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based payments and
the accounting for modification from cash-settled awards to equity-settled
awards. It also introduces an exception to the principles in HKFRS 2 that
requires an award to be treated as if it is wholly equity-settled, where an
employer is obliged to withhold an amount for the employee’s tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to the tax
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b)

New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not
effective (Contd)

Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification and measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions” (Contd)

The directors do not foresee any material impact on the Group since the
Group has insignificant cash-settled share-based payment transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 12, “Income taxes”

The amendments stemmed from a request to clarify the requirements on
recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on debt instruments
measured at fair value. However, the amendments address a broader area
of accounting for deferred tax assets in general.

The amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary
difference depends solely on a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected
by possible future changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of
recovery of the asset.

The amendments also provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits to support the recognition of a deferred tax asset
arising from a deductible temporary difference.

As the Group does not have debt instruments measured at fair value,
the amendments will not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEXHEIFESHBERME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

2.1 IMBEXE (#)
(b) EBMIEREINZ FATER R E

effective (Contd)
Amendments to HKAS 7, “Statement of cash flows”

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments indicate that one
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way is to provide a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
for liabilities arising from financing activities.
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Management anticipates that the application of amendments to HKAS 7 in
the future may have a material impact on the consolidated statement of
cash flows in the Group’s combined financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of Amendments
to HKAS 7 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF

PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)

Business combinations (Cont'd)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement of profit or loss.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between
the fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

78

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s interests in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the aggregate fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its investments in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEEHFITEHBFEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Associates (Cont'd) 2.3 B AT ()
The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective AEEEEEREEHEEREGER
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case, the BEBEEABEARIRECRRE - 1
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the REBRE  AEEFERE &858
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the REE QAR A MBI S FEEEREE
amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the consolidated =5 WERABmRT EM [ EE
statement of profit or loss. —REE R R 2 FE(BER) ] #R
BRASEE -
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions AEFEEEBENR Mz E TR
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial SEEZEZ WEBEREAAR
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. BMERNRZERRR  EAEEZ M
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of BHEER - RIER FREFHRET
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information of associates FrsgEEERE  SAKRSREET
has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting LASISH - Bt AR 2 AR BIRS
policies adopted by the Group. ZIEHNE  UEREAEERAZ
BEBEREE—H -
Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the M ERNAIRERFEECEERE
consolidated statement of profit or loss. REREEERER ©
2.4 Segment reporting 24 72K
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal WMELED Wz BEER R HELER
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating REFTRME 2 NEBMEMFEA 2 EE
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing Ef— B BFELCERREEBESR
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive BRMAEEE DI 2RIR - HAH
directors collectively, who make strategic decisions. TES2BMIEHREIRE -
2.5 Foreign currency translation 2.5 MR E
(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) DIEER ZFE %
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities REESEB W BHREMTIE
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in B AUASEERLCEMTEE
which the group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated ZRBERFECEE ([THEEEEE])
financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the Company’s functional FTE o SRAMEHREKRTILAAR AR
and the Group's presentation currency. ZNMEEERRAEE 2 25|88
BILES ©
(b) Transactions and balances b) X5 R4Er
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency INER GIEX G HIAR SR E
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or BREXRMERINEEE - &8
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses FZEZXDRBFHAZERIGE
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation OMNETIEZ B EERBEM
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated ELIMNERBHANGE BRRE
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit e
or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and BE HekReFHEEBELAH
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or ZERBSENBEREGAERR
loss within “finance income” or “finance costs”, EZJ F;ﬁﬁ%% AL 3k [ B 75 Ak A
53R o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances (Contd)

80

(©)

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “other income and other gains/(losses) —

"

net.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Leasehold land and land use rights
The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land interests — classified as
operating leases and land use rights are accounted for as operating leases.
They are expensed in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods of the lease or the land use right. When there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
interests classified as finance leases and all other property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases commence amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets other than construction in progress are calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs (less estimated residual values, if any)
over their estimated useful lives at the annual rates, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance lease  Over the remaining lease term (2%)

Buildings 4% - 5%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

Leasehold improvements 20% - 33% or shorter of the
lease terms

Furniture and equipment 20% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

Computer software 10%

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

82

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses. On completion,
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the asset is completed
and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Financial assets

291 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2016 / 2017 Annual Report

FRBBRRMEE (8)

2 RAUEEEFTBEHABRRUE ()

2.7 W% - BERRE (B

EEIREEZIRERTKE
T HE R MEEYEEE &
BENGRE  REAER (BRITERAX
REMEBEKA) B ERRER RS
fR o TR EETRRSRKARER
AHRERE (A) BREEE SRR
ZWE BELREE ERZIERE
BE TR R e P AR N\ PR B U7 A 9 B

(=

HEREBRLBMEFRERAEE

E - YREFEBERTHER °

28 FEMEEZRE

HEFRBERESHBREEESTA
Yl - AfElH 2 BE IS (R ER
A o EEEREER R K C SRR
AR E MR R ERE - AT E 2R
BNEEAABRHEEXNAEERE
EMEERZRSE - BT {HRE "
BERBYAIBHRERE 2 RIEK
FREELEM) D8 - BN
ZIEEMEERHBERE - AARS

WmE AP A TRERE -

29 SREE

291 7 4E

AEBRESREESRAT :
BArEEABRELKR I ERE
=~ B EMGRIA A R AT 4
EEMEE - 2 BERTFBAZR
BEZAMMmME EEREBEDND

ERNEEESRMEEDHE

(@) BAAREBEBIERCR SR

R
BE

BAAEBEBESCRZERH
BEEBFEBEZERMEE -
SREEAEB AR IZAME
EFEHREE: AInEAL
Rl o PTET BERRIFWIEE A
i BRI DBAFIER S
% - (HIEEIR12E B AEE
BESEARBEE Bl

DRRIEREEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

291

292

Classification (Contd)

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amount due from associates and cash and bank balances
in the consolidated balance sheet.

() Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “other income and other gains/(losses)
- net”in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income when the Group's right
to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

292

Recognition and measurement (Contd)
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as “other income and other
gains/(losses) — net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
or the counterparty.

2.11Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or Group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a Group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or Group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
Group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Contd)
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a Group of financial assets is impaired.

For investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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86

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.13Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and
work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.14Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks.

2.16 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

When any Group company purchases the Company’'s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to
owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.

2.17 Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade, bills
and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17 Trade, bills and other payables (Cont'd)
Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

2.19Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates and joint ventures operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

88

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profits
is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit scheme under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits

relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

&=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Retirement benefits (Contd)

()

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state/trustee-
administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

90

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.20Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(c) Share-based compensation (Contd)

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the
employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent equity accounts.

(d) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.22Revenue recognition

Revenue comprise the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the sale of goods and provision of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue are shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEEHITEHBFEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.22Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

2.2 WA TERE (48)

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group's entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Sub-contracting income
Sub-contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

(c) Handling income
Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

(d) Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease periods.

2.23Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables
are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.24Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.25Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group has complied
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.27 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.28 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollars (“USS”"),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs (“VND"). The Group manages
its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring
its foreign exchange exposure. The Group hedges certain of its exposure
to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

As HKS is pegged to USS$, management believes that the exchange rate
risk for translations between HKS and USS$ do not have material impact
to the Group.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and Vietnam.
Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain inter-company
receivables denominated in foreign currencies, transactions are mainly
conducted in the functional currency of the respective group entity.
The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities is
considered by the Directors to be minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Market risk (Contd)

94

()

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

The Group uses forward currency contracts to hedge part of its foreign
exchange risk. These forward currency contracts do not qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the respectively exchange
rates against the functional currency of the respective group entities,
with all other variables held constant, to the profit for the year ended
31 March 2017, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange impact on
translation of cash and bank balance, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, trade and bills payables and accruals and other
payables denominated in these foreign currencies.

2017 2017%

If USS strengthens/weakens against RMB WETHAREAE /ZE
If US$ strengthens/weakens against VND WETHBEEE BE
I RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS WAREHELHE /LA
2016 20165

If US$ strengthens/weakens against RMB WETHAREAE BE
If USS strengthens/weakens against VND WETHBAERE /LA
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS WARBSETHE, RE

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits and bank loans, details of which are disclosed
in Note 15 and Note 18 respectively, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Market risk (Contd)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Cont'd)

If the market interest rates for cash and bank balance and bank loans
had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2017 would have been approximately HK$3,048,000 (2016:
HK$3,828,000) higher/lower.

(b) Credit risk

(c)

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, derivative financial instruments and cash and bank balances.

Substantially all of the cash and bank balances, as detailed in Note 15, are
held in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau
and Vietnam; all derivative financial instruments are also entered into
with major financial institutions, which management believes are of high
credit quality. Management does not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Credit quality of customers is assessed based on
their financial position, past default history and other factors. Normally the
Group does not require collateral from trade debtors. The existing debtors
have no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables generally falls within the recorded
allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through adequate committed credit facilities.

The Group's primary cash requirements are for additions and upgrades to
property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital injections into
subsidiaries, and payments for purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through funds generated from its
operations, bank loans and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GRUKRERME (B)

3 MBERERE (#)

3.1 B EBREE (&)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)
The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and has
available funding through adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

TRAZMBEIHARTIRALE
ERGAatEREANZIMA 2
MeBRzyBaEERZ S
- RRPBEEZ2EBE/AMNN
AFERSRE -

The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 March 2017

R2017§3H318

On demand Within 1 year Over 1 year Total

RER %R TN E st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TR TET TET THET

Bank loans BITER 471,701 - - 471,701
Loan from a non-controlling interest  — R B 22 RIFEHR Il 1

of a subsidiary RRREER - - 144,772 144,772

Trade and bills payables ERNERREZE - 930,261 - 930,261

Accruals and other payables [EstIaE &ﬁﬁﬂ)’gﬁ;’" - 205,374 - 205,374

Amount due to an associate F?fﬁ ) YNE] - 1,417 - 1,417

471,701 1,137,052 144,772 1,753,525

As at 31 March 2016
2016634311

On demand Within 1 year Over 1 year
BEX 1R/ 1500k #
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THET
Bank loans RITER 686,473 - - 686,473
Loan from a non-controlling interest  — R /B 22 B 3E#2 Il 1E
of a subsidiary ERREER - 144,400 144,409
Trade and bills payables ERERREE - 783353 - 783,353
Accruals and other payables FEx1EE REMENFIE = 358,711 = 358,711
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeman - 3,704 - 3,704
Amount due to an associate e —FEE & AR08 = 2479 = 2479
686,473 1,148,247 144,409 1,979,129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMRBRRMET (B)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BMRRBRER (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 A RREE (])
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd) © wEItEfE (&)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of the Group’s bank loans
with a repayable on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments
set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis contained above.

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretions to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment date as set out in
the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings subject to a repayable on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments (including related interest payable):

TERBERBEE KW HS ZBE
EEFEREK  AEEESRE
KREEGRZRTERZIH S
I ZERIEBIEIAR HF G
BZMENK - Btk - ZF A
BB EXHEINRS M [RE
SR W R €8 A PR AR 58 2 7RO o

FARARBZMBEARN  EEY
TRABIRITH AT REITE ELAEFI LA
ERARER - EERB/RETE
R RBERBZEANMIZBEE
BRRERER

FH T — IRIBELE B R R
BEREBREEGRZRITEE
(BEBEARNHNE) :

Less than Between Between
On demand Tyear 1and2years 2and5years  Over5 years Total
RER £/ 1226 2E5F SENE H)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THRT TET TER TET TER
31 March 2017 201743A318 = 203,196 173,462 117,181 - 493,839
31 March 2016 2016%3A318 = 229,622 202,779 290,622 = 723,023
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3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’'d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments which
will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

FRUBRENT (B)

3 MBERERE (#)

3.1 MERBREE (#)

) B EE (&)
TR AIZEBEE HARIY RS
BHEEAZALEHE 2 R
MZAEBEEELE 2 TES R
TEAZDH - RERFPEEZEH
BAEHNERITERSRE -

Less Between Between
than 1 land3 3 months Over
month months and 1 year 1 year Total
SM1ER  1Z318A 3EAZE1E 15 E Y
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THERT THET THET THET
At 31 March 2017: M201743H318 :
Forward currency contracts: REIEREL -
Inflow A = = - - -
Outflow i - - - - -
At 31 March 2016: R20165F3H318 :
Forward currency contracts: BREEHAEH
Inflow mA = 238,313 38,286 = 276,599
Outflow i = (227,523) (38,768) = (266,291)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 52 ERER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, draw down or repay debt.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2016 / 2017 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BMRRBRER (8)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

32 ESRRERE ()

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowings and bills payables as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of “equity” as shown in the

HEAMRZEARR  AEEAEREE
HEREEERETN o bl RIZRIE TS AR
BRAER@EAE - EHARBRELR
REERBERMIIZERERENRR

NEERBBERGEEERBRMY
Z [#Eas] - EARELRNT

consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were as follows:

2017 2016
20174 20165

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Borrowings == 616,473 830,882
Bills payables iANEL 16,345 23,104
Total debt (UGS 632,818 853,986
Total capital BB 3,180,448 3,351,932
Gearing ratio BREEL 19.9% 25.5%

H R AN QSR 1T 1 OB A B AR A Y
HEFE  EXRBELERTR -

The gearing ratio decreased as a result of offsetting effect of decrease in bank
borrowings and decrease in capital in the current year.

3.3 D AEME
TREBIILZFTE QA EATABERM

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value as
at 31 March 2017, by level of inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair B A\ BES R TAEER2017F3 A
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy B AREIRZEHMIA - WA
as follows: ERAT=ZEARERBRILE :

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities - HREEXEEEEREM S 2R
(level 1). B CREEHAR) (B1E) -

BRTEIEMBRZHRESN  ZE
EXRBEZABREZEMBEA -
AREE ENGMER) KEE
(ARBEER) (B28)

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

BENAEY KB BED S
Rz EA (ETHEEEA)
(%3/E) -

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

FRUBRENT (B)

3 MBERERE (#)
3.3 AR EME ()

100

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value at 31 March 2017.

TR RAE B R2017F38318 %
PRhEFECEERAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE H2E %E3[E b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FHExT THET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESHEE
(Note 10) (PfF5E10)
— Club debentures —e%E5 853 - - 853
853 - - 853

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value at 31 March 2016.

TRIRAEBR2016F3A31HIZ AR
ErtEvEEREE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H2[E H3E #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FERT FHExT TET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE
(Note 10) (Mt7E10)
— Club debentures —S#EE5 1,741 - - 1,741
1,741 - — 1,741
Liabilities =N
Derivative financial instruments (Note 14)  $TA&£ @t T A (FfzE14) - (3,704) = (3,704)

There were no transfers between levels during the years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
closing bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of interests in associates

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the interests
in associates, significant adverse changes in the market environment, and the fair
value of the assets held by the associates. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining the recoverable amount of an interest in associates, management
has considered both the value in use and fair value less cost to disposal. In
determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a) its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received and proceeds on
disposal. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down the interests in
associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

102

()

(d

(e

=

—

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions where its subsidiaries
operate. Significant judgement is required in determining provisions for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement is
required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of these
matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the provisions
made and the earnings stated in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the financial position, repayment history and credit
rating of its customers and other debtors and the current market condition,
and requires the use of judgements and estimates. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(f) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use

rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less
cost to disposal. These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the assets in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group's reported balance sheet and results of
operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the statement of profit or loss.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The chief operating decision-maker ("CODM") has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.

As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and trading
of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive directors
review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers operations
conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam. The executive
directors review resources allocation and assess performance of the Group on a
regular basis based on the following financial information:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d) FefHERkEE (8)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZEER (&)
2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Revenue N 5,993,632 6,927,614
Gross profit EF 1,116,484 1,302,504
Gross profit margin (%) FE FII=R (%) 18.6% 18.8%
Operating expenses AT 177,235 223,799
Operating expenses/Revenue (%) A ONCD) 3.0% 3.2%
EBITDA (Note (1)) ME -~ BIA - P8 KR E A
(BEEEQ) 1,283,391 1,445,075
EBITDA/Revenue (%) M - BiIE - FrE REEA
@A WA (%) 21.4% 20.9%
Finance income IR 1 ON 12,004 22,544
Finance costs B 75 A AN 12,407 18,200
Depreciation and amortisation (included in e Y GrABEERAR
cost of sales and operating expenses) ENEEP) 147,176 154,530
Share of profits of associates AN (=) N bl | 32,375 36,311
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on R—EBEE R EZ R EEE
interest in an associate B R El 46,784 39,900
(Loss)/gain on disposal of certain interest in an associate {5 —fEl& A al& TR Z
(B18),/ Wz (393) 54,941
Income tax expense IS fifx 146,584 172,194
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company NN R EREA AEGRF 975,573 1,125,530
Net profit margin (%) 4 ) 2 (%) 16.3% 16.2%
Total assets BEMAE 5,011,768 5,431,444
Equity attributable to equity holders AARERFA ARG ER
of the Company 3,177,168 3,360,099
Cash and bank balances RS EIRITAE R 1,081,844 1,452,483
Borrowings EE 616,473 830,882
Inventories T7E 978,440 1,016,105
Inventory turnover days (Note (ii)) FEBEE HE () 75 64
Trade and bills receivables JEURBR TR R 4R 943,608 935217
Trade and bills receivables turnover days (Note (iii)) FEUBR N R SR HR A 8 A 2 (B X)) 57 46
Trade and bills payables EAEREEE 930,261 783,353
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (ii)) R BE R R =R A EE H & (B aEii) 64 50
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 AEER (&)

Notes:

(i) EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs, income
tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(i) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the year

and the end of the year balances over cost of sales.

(iii) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the year
and the end of the year balances over revenue.

A reconciliation of EBITDA to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:

MRE

() FE - BIR - T8 REHADENIRER
RRFTHBEWA - BIEA - FrSHHE
X rE RS AT A o

(i) BEEBIRFINEFREHZBHETY
HERIAHERAETE -

(i) 1R A IR F Y EFERER 2 B E 1T
HBERABAGE -

B~ BIIA - I E N AT A B ER AR
1SRG A AR R Z R EI BRI T

2017 2016
20174 20164F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBxT FHET

EBITDA FlE - FIE - HTE R ATER 1,283,391 1,445,075
Depreciation e (145,855) (153,202)
Amortisation b3 (1,321) (1,328)
Finance income BT 12,004 22,544
Finance costs 2D @N (12,407) (18,200)
Profit before income tax bR BT84 B A 1,135,812 1,294,889

The Group's revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products were
delivered, is as follows:

REERRAEERHEE - Ytz (X
ERXfzBNthA%) EoH 2 RAHND
MR -

2017 2016
20175 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

PRC Fh 1,075,447 1,983,634
Vietnam B 2,548,264 1,642,865
Hong Kong &8 745,700 798,196
Central and Southern America EeE S 261,668 715,348
Other South East Asia (Note (i) HeREERER (M) 350,424 666,141
Sri Lanka HEE-R 404,898 486,213
India = 73,651 111,231
Haiti NS 157,241 101,108
Africa FEIM 280,282 77,291
Others HAih 96,057 345,587
5,993,632 6,927,614
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZEER (&)
Note: BEE -
(i) Other South East Asia mainly includes Indonesia, Cambodia and Thailand. () HtRmEIEREZRIEDE - TR
eI
For the year ended 31 March 2017, customer A and customer B accounted for HZE2017F3A31BLEFE @ EPARE
approximately 46% and 11% of the Group's revenue, respectively. For the year ended F B Bl #9152 & B U A #946% K 11% o
31 March 2016, customer A accounted for approximately 37% of the Group's revenue. HZE2016F3A31HIEFE - KEADME
Revenue from customer B accounted for less than 10% of the Group's total revenue REBMUTARZ7% © B E20165F3A31H
for the year ended 31 March 2016. All other customers individually accounted for less IEFE - REE PRI AL AL R
than 10% of the Group’s revenue for year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. ALREERI10%LA T o & ZE20174 %2016

EIANBULEE EEMETEEB
(RAREERAER10% °

The Group's non-current assets (excluding interests in associates) are located in REBEZERBEE (TEEREE
the following geographical areas: NEZ ) MR A T HE
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHET
PRC =8 1,271,094 1,346,285
Hong Kong a5 23,688 16,939
Vietnam jidEa] 297,550 285,969
Others HAit 1,651 93
1,593,983 1,649,286
6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 T L
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments $%§§if@1§ﬁﬁ *EZ%E@B/\\\‘:P )
in the PRC and their net book values are analysed as follows: TR E B AFIA - AREFED T
T
2017
201745
HK$'000
FERT
At 1 April R4H1H 49,133 52,648
Amortisation By (1,321) (1,328)
Currency translation differences SN ET 2 R (2,805) (2,187)
At 31 March M3H31H 45,007 49,133
In the PRC held on: R BIRA
— Land use rights of between 10 to 50 years — FHNT10E50F 2 T fs A RE 45,007 49,133
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE-KRERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold Plantand  furniture and Motor Computer  Construction
land Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles software i progress
RENE
BELH BF B i ERIE
HKS'000 K00 K ' 3 (
T 3
At 1 April 2015 R20155481R
Cost AR 460 1,132,275 2,187,19% 235,866 35,186 64828 269,136 3928747
Accumulated depreciation Z2iE (1,145) (323,931) 2,002,588) (169,016) (20,898) - - (2517578)
Net book amount KA 315 808344 184,608 66,850 1488 64,828 269,136 141,169
Year ended 31 March 2016 H201653R31ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 315 808344 184,608 66,850 14288 64828 269,136 141,169
Additions hE - 1,595 27,704 16,690 5475 14307 271,200 336971
Disposals and write-off HERHH - (7.765) (13457) (1,586) (1,285) - - (24093)
Depreciation e 97 (49859) (67871) (268%) (4471) (4014) - (153,200
Transfers g - 100028 260,534 59,712 - - (420274) -
Currency translation differences hERE e - (33,009) (12026) (2649) (377) (476) (11,164) (59697)
Closing net book amount ERETEE 3018 819334 37949 112131 13630 74645 108,898 151,148
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31R
Cost A 4260 117220 2303785 28,178 36,907 78614 108,898 4012863
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (1240 (352887)  (1.944293) (176,047) @3277) (399) - (2,501,715)
Net book amount KEFE 3018 819,334 37949 112131 13630 74645 108898 151,148
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE17E3R31 A LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 3,018 819,334 379,492 112,131 13,630 74,645 108,898 1,511,148
Additions FE - 4,007 10376 10,553 1433 16,394 123,606 166,369
Disposals and write-off HE S - (4,018) (790) (1,180) (118) - - (6,106)
Depreciation nE (97) (52,269) (50,597) (29,967) (4,433) (8,492) - (145,855)
Transfers L7 - 5,702 52,348 23,403 - - (81,453) -
Currency translation differences hEpREES - (43,430) (23,015) (4,680) (568) - (6,529) (78,222)
Closing net book amount ERERFE 2921 729,326 367,814 110,260 9,944 82,547 144522 1,447,334
At 31 March 2017 R2017£3A31A
Cost A 4260 1109834 2219827 299,801 31,097 95,008 144522 3,904,349
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (1,339) (380,508)  (1,852,013) (189,541) (21,153) (12,461) - (2457015
Net book amount EmEE 2921 729,326 367,814 110,260 9,944 82,547 144522 1,447,334
As at 31 March 2017, buildings with net book value of HK$66,123,000 (2016: 201763318 - RN M EREFER
HK$64,432,000) located in Vietnam were built on land of which the Group is in the 66,123,000 7T (2016%F : 64,432,000/ JT.)
process of applying for and use right certificate from the government authority MIEFERAEB EERBFEBERS
(See Note 13). HiF B ERN i (RKIE13)
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 7 YE-BERRZE ()
The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid operating lease payments AEEPNHE T 7 R AN EBNER
in Hong Kong and their net book values are analysed as follows: EEEsIE - RREFEI AT
2017
20175
HK$’000
FET
In the Hong Kong held on: NEBRA
- Leases of between 10 to 50 years — HEANF 102505 2,921 3,018
Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is Efx\ﬂif/ﬁ\%ﬁﬁ MRERR Z 37 & I S2 0 47 40

—

analysed as follows:

2017

20175

HK$'000

TET
Cost of sales SHE A 135,886 146,343
General and administrative expenses — R RATERR S 9,969 6,859
145,855 153,202

8 SUBSIDIARIES s MEAT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016: TRARR2017F KX20165F3 8318 2 £
ZIE AT :

Place of incorporation Particulars of issued Equity interest
Name of subsidiaries and kind of legal entity share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities

HEARER SRR BEREARRER BRARAHE REEEERARR B34

2017 2016
20178 20165

Shares held directly by the Company:

FARERGERS :
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 17T i
AERARE . BREALH RERR
Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 17T
EBRRER - BRELAR REER
Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 17T ‘
RERIEHS - BREALT REER
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 17T i
AERARE - BREMLH RERR
Solid Ally International Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 17T
EBRRER - BREEAR REER
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8 MBATE (#)
TRAIRR2017F 2016538318 2 £
ZBAFR : (&)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016:
(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiaries

HEARER

Shares held directly by the Company:

Place of incorporation Particulars of issued

and kind of legal entity
SRR SR EARRER

share capital

BRARAHE

Equity interest
attributable to the Group
FREEERTER
2017 2016
20175 20168

Principal activities

KARERBERS :
Lehan Resources Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 17T
AERARE . BREMLH RERR
Fast Right Group Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
FAEEERAR liability company 1,000% T
AERARE  BREMLT RERR
Product Champion Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Uss1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 1570
AERARE - BREMLT RERR
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
RAABESERE :
Fast Right Group (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Uss1 100% 100%  Investment holding
IEREE (B%) BRAR company E
&R AREEAF RERR
Pacific Textiles Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$103,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and
BAGEBERAT company 103,000,00058 7T trading of textile products in
A BREAAHA Hong Kong
REBETREZRR
nRanEs
Pacific SPM Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRABGHEEERAT company 17T
&E - AREEAF RERR
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Commercial Macau, limited liability company MOP1,030,000 100% 100%  Trading of textile products in
Offshore Limited BF . AREEAT 1,030,007 8 Macau
ERBIMRRFEFARRBER AR REFETHARE S
Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited PRC, limited liability company US$89,700,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
EX(EB) nEHNEERAR HE - ARERAH 89,700,000 7 textile products in the PRC

REBETHERRERES
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8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 8 MEAR (&)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016: T&RARPR2017F R20165F3H31H 2 E
(Cont'd) ENBAT : (58)

Place of incorporation Particulars of issued Equity interest

Name of subsidiaries and kind of legal entity share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities

HEARER SRR BEREARRER BRARAHE REEEERARR IERE

2017 2016
20175 20165

Shares held indirectly by the Company:

RAREESERG :
Pacific GT Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$19,025,000 95% 95%  Investment holding
liability company 19,025,000 7T
ERRLES - EREEAA REHR
PCGT Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$3,900,000 71.25% 7125%  Investment holding and
company 3,900,000/87¢ trading of textile products
A BREAAHA in Hong Kong
REBETREAZRR
nRnEs
Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited ("PCTL") Vietnam, limited liability company US$48,000,000 71.25% 7125%  Manufacturing and trading of
#E - BREEAT 48,000,000 75 textile products in Vietnam
REBETHARRERES
South Shining Limited British Virgin Islands, limited USS1 95% 95%  Investment holding
HEERAH liability company 1570 REER
RERAES - FREMLT
(a) Material non-controlling interests (a) ERFEHIMRERS
The total non-controlling interest as at 31 March 2017 is HK$3,280,000 (2016; MR201743 A31 8 2 FE #7514 #E = 48
HK$(8,167,000)), of which HK$6,683,000 (2016: HK$6,978,000) is for Pacific GT #2 733,280,000/ JT (2016 : (8,167,000)
Limited, HK$860,000 (2016: HK$4,108,000) is for PCGT Limited and HK$(4,261,000) ¥ JT) + H H6683000% TT (20164F -
(2016: HK$(19,252,000)) is for PCTL. The non-controlling interests in respect of 697800075 7T) 5/8 7 Pacific GT Limited
South Shining Limited are not material. 860,00078 7T (20164F : 4,108,000/ 7T) 5

ERAPCGT Limited }(4,261,000)78 7T (2016
£ : (19,252,000 7T) 55 /& RPCTL ° B
SBERATIMIEES MEEREIEERX ©
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8 KEAR (&)
(a) EAFZFIMES (B

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Cont’d)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information for each subsidiary that
has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

HBEEAFZEH B B R R 2R
AT EFI R S AL S BEKRD
ISR XMB AR ZHBE

BE -
Pacific GT Limited PCGT Limited PCTL
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20165 20175 20165 20175 20165
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT TER ; TER ;i
Summarised balance sheet EESERYUE
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,925 2,925 390,821 356,969 290,455 282,991
Current assets MBEE 139,476 145,351 379,735 386,120 651,158 157,166
Non-current liabilities E eIV - - 578,342 577,979 - -
Current liabilities TEAE 8,745 8,718 188,713 150,311 584,294 134,982
Net assets BETE 133,656 139,558 3,501 14,799 357,319 305,715
Summarised statement of BERYE
profit or loss
Revenue WA - - 1,499,618 622,212 801,688 277,391
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8)/ & (5,902) (4,339) (11,298) 28,666 59,824 (37,770)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  FEEM2HE (Ei8),/
for the year A - = - = (7,680) (10,528)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  FE2M (B1E),/
for the year WA 4% (5,902) (4339) (11,298) 28,666 52,144 (48,298)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income DB EIEEE| 1R
allocated to ZEE (B8)/
non-controlling interests Nt (295) (217) (3,247) 8,242 14,991 (13,886)
Dividends paid to non-controlling  [mFEZR HI 1 HERS TR AT
interests g = = = = - -
Summarised cash flows BERERE
Net cash (used in)/generated from  &&E&E) (FiH),/
operating activities s 2R e 58 () 3 5,595 70 9,836 (48572)
Net cash used in investing REEDFAES
activities Pk = = (16,598) (3,143) (47,347) (128,770)
Net cash used in financing MEEBARE
activities Vit - = = = = -
Net (decrease)/increase in cashand B4 RBRSZEEE
cash equivalents (Rd)/ e () 3 (11,003) (3,073) (37,511) (177,342)

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

As at 31 March 2017, cash and bank deposits of HK$10,525,000 (2016:
HK$49,175,000) are held in Vietnam and are subject to local exchange control
regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal dividends.

i ERRARBEEASE -

R2017F3A8318 REEFEE S
K ER1T1EFK10,525,00058 7T (20164F :
49,175,000%57T) * BAS G INEE
HIAR EBUFRBR o 72 S 7 SNEE 3R
TEE N B AE L ERNELRS - HE
8 B A% BE M RIBR AN o
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9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd.

FRUBRENT (B)

9 MEERNRzEEREN—BHBEQT
FRIE

(@ PEEEFERDE

2017
20174

2016
20164F
HK$'000
FHxT

HK$’000
TERT

EIEXR (BM) REHBER

("SPM Automotive”) R (METIEAD 27,932 26,447
Teejay Limited (“PT Sri Lanka”) Teejay Limited ([PTHT 2R ]) 267,286 210,865
295,218 237,312

Movements in share of net assets of associates are as follows:

DIEBERREEFEZEBM D

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FAxT

At 1 April R4A18 237,312 222,820
Dividends [85) (20,761) (18,705)
Share of profits 4 32,375 36,311
Release of net assets as a result of disposal HESZHEBKRZEEFE (393) (41,891)
Reversal of provision for impairment VENIEEE e 46,784 39,900
Currency translation differences NS = EE (99) (1,123)
At 31 March R3A31H8 295,218 237,312

During the year, management assessed the carrying amount of the
Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka, and determined that HK$46,784,000 (2016:
HK$39,900,000) of the provision for impairment previously made should be
reversed, taking into account the associate’s financial performance and expected
future market conditions. The recoverable amount of PT Sri Lanka, which
exceeded its carrying amount, was determined based on value-in-use, with
discount rate of 14% (2016: 16%) per annum.
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9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9 REBEATZEZREN—BEEQT
I (#])
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd) (a) PHEEFEHEEE (H)
The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2017 and 2016, which were held 20174 R20165F3 4318 2 B & A
indirectly by the Company, are as follows: A (AAREIRERE) Z2FEHT -

Equity interest
Place of incorporation Particulars of attributable to
Name of associates and kind of legal entity issued share capital the Group Principal activities

a1 R 32 4t B % B#T F&H

- PNGE EAERER BRAFHE FE{L B AR 2R TEER
2017 2016
2017%F 20165

SPM Automotive PRC, US$7,500,000 33% 33%  Manufacturing and trading
FIEKR limited liability company 7,500,000 7T of vehicles related textile
mE - BEREEAT products in the PRC
PR BT )T EE AR R A Ak
mELERE S
Teejay Limited Sri Lanka, RS2,749,266,000 28% 28%  Manufacturing and trading
Teejay Limited limited liability company  2,749,266,0005 £ &~ & t, of textile products
HERK BRAEELQA in Sri Lanka
RET BB RHETT
HEmMmEERE S
SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted FIEARAR—EABEELETAA @ it
market price available for its shares. H D r A5 WmE -
At 31 March 2017, the quoted market value of the Group’s interest in Teejay 201783 4318 - A& E R Teejay Limited
Limited, which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was (—ERITEBREHREE SRS E™M
approximately HK$370,349,000 (2016: HK$338,464,000). B2 &) B HE 25 BT ¥R T B 4 4370,349,000

BIT (20169F : 338,464,000787T) °
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9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9 REEQARZEZREN—MBEQT
MR ()
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd) (a) PIEEEFEEFE (H)
Summarised financial information for associates BN T8 R E
Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive and PATNEZI{E T 5 A RPTHT B B < bARE
PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method. FEABRM BB ERIE o

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
FIEK PTHTEM At
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

20178  2016%F  2017%F  2016%F 20178 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
FH@x FTH L FEx TFTEHET TFExT TET

Summarised balance sheet EEEERUE

Non-current assets ERBEE 9,380 13239 398,646 348177 408,026 361,416
Current assets mMENEE 138,190 120,951 456,151 435447 594,341 556,398
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE - - 52,242 25338 52,242 25,338
Current liabilities mEBE 62,926 54,049 231,021 224372 293,947 278421
Net assets BESE 84,644 80,141 571,534 533914 656,178 614,055
Summarised statement of BRRUE

profit or loss

Revenue ON 244,080 199228 1,166,339 966,745 1,410,419 1,165973
Profit for the year FRmH 10,655 2349 103,513 121,483 114,168 123,832

Other comprehensive income  FE E i 2 EUA
for the year = - - _ _ _
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 E WA 42%E

for the year 10,655 2,349 103,513 121,483 114,168 123,832
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associates B E R R B E R E A E
to the carrying value of the Group's interest in associates. B A B BRI E R $IER -
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REENT 2SR EN—BBEQT
;IE ()

(@) PEEEFEEEE (H)
BERFIMHBEENE ()

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd)
Summarised financial information for associates (Contd)

Opening net assets at 1 April

R4AVBEIZ

SPM Automotive
FIEXR

PT Sri Lanka
PTHIEM+

Total
#st

2017

20174
HK$’000
FHT

2016
2016%F
HK$'000
FHT

2017
20175
HK$'000
FET

2016
20165
HK$'000
T

2017
20175
HK$'000
FHT

2016
20165
HK$'000
FET

BEE%E 80,141 91316 533,914 408850 614,055 500,166
Currency translation differences HNEE I E = 2 (4,988) (3,553) 1,414 (283) (3,574) (3,836)
Issuance of share 1T D - - 4,780 56,841 4,780 56,841
Profit for the year EERF 10,655 2,349 103,513 121,631 114,168 123,980
Dividends Bz 8 (1,164) (9,971) (72,087) (53,125) (73,251) (63,096)
Closing net assets at 31 March P3A31BERZ
BEE%E 84,644 80,141 571,534 533914 656,178 614,055
Net assets attributable to REERGLEEFE
the Group 27,932 26,447 160,316 150,297 188,248 176,744
Goodwill EES - - 109,863 110,255 109,863 110,255
Less: Unrealised gain on sale of B SR
machinery to an associate B NTZ
REB W= - - (2,893) (2,903) (2,893) (2,903)
Less: Impairment B ORE - - - (46,784) - (46,784)
Interests in associates RIS N R 2 RS 27,932 26,447 267,286 210,865 295,218 237,312
Dividends received SN 35!
from associates 365 3,290 20,396 15415 20,761 18,705

B R R R B N R TS IR P D
TR YORARBEBERRZE
ATRRERELRE

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
of the associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the associates.

AEBRBEARNERYELFR

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in associates.

f& o
Cash and bank deposits of HK$41,401,000 (2016: HK$31,387,000) which belongs R EREEEBNAEE NP R 2B

2N AR RIRTTER41,401,0007%
7T (20164F : 31,387,000/ 7T) * BAS
Hh 75 SN B AR TE RO HRIR o sxE b T
HINE B Il A5 T8 3 18 B A B S B AN E
PR - MRS R I AR S0 ) RIBR SN ©

to the Group's associate in the PRC are held in the PRC and are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.
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9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(b) Amounts due from associates

(c

(d

—

=

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The amounts are denominated in USS.

Amount due to an associate
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The amount is denominated in RMB.

Disposal of certain interests in an associate

In June 2015, the Group disposed of a 10% interest in PT Sri Lanka for
HK$100,268,000 and recognised a gain of HK$50,866,000, including reversal of
the related provision for impairment of HK$39,900,000. In this connection, the
Group's interest in this associate was reduced from 40% to 30%.

In January 2016, PT Sri Lanka issued certain new shares to a number of investors.
In this connection, a deemed disposal gain of HK$4,075,000 was recognised by
the Group, being the difference between the Group's share of net assets in PT
Sri Lanka immediately before and after the share issuance. The Group's interest
in PT Sri Lanka was reduced from 30% to 28% accordingly.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, certain employees of PT Sri Lanka
exercised their share options. In this connection, a deemed disposal loss of
HK$393,000 was recognised by the Group, being the difference between the
Group's share of net assets in PT Sri Lanka immediately before and after the
exercises. The Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka remains at approximately 28%.

10 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

116

FRUBRENT (B)

9 MREENRzEEREN—HBERT

FIE ()

(b) FEUrERE A B FIH
FEW B 2 N AR REER  RER
RERFER - LFAETTIHIE °

(c) FE—BEB&E QA RFR
A — MBS R RIRIAAEER - ®
BRERBERFEE - EBUARKETD
B

(d) HE— BB ARETES
R2015F6 A + 28 & & 1A100,268,000
78 JC & APTHT B 3 < 2 10%H) 4
% 0 I 1 3R W £550,866,00078 JT B
& 18 B8 R B 5 f # [239,900,0007%8
JC ° B+ ANEBR R E R R 2B
2 FH40%3, 2= 30% °

R2016F1 A PTHNEE RME T &
BEEBTETHRGD - Al BIEH
& Uk 754,075,00078 7T (BN 282 itk I 1D
TR E REE AR D BT IAPTAT R
BROMGEEFENER) EAEEH
R Al NEBRPTHIER K2
W 2% FH30%I8 = 28% ©

RE Z=2017F3H318 I F E » PTHT
BEFENETEETHEEERE - &
It - AR 1E & E518393,00058 7T (BN
BT ER R R ITE R A EBR
PIHTEBE RO EEFENERE) &
AEEER - NEERPTHEF R
TS RIFTERI28% ©

10 AIEHESREE

2017 2016

20174 20165

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Club debentures @HEEL 853 1,741
At 1 April R4H1H 1,741 1,827
Disposal HE - (86)
Impairment RE (888) -
At 31 March MR3A31H 853 1,741

The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices. See

Note 3.3 for further information on fair value. Available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in HKS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) me f Rk (8)
11 INVENTORIES 1 #&
2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials =R 474,439 669,433
Work-in-progress TR 317,005 146,466
Finished goods BUAK 186,996 200,206
978,440 1,016,105
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year amounted to FANEA % %sz AZRFEKRAL 795
approximately HK$4,246,957,000 (2016: HK$4,959,149,000). 4246957,0007%8  TT (2016%F : 49591490007
JT) °
12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 BUORN R RiE
2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables FEURBR R 868,220 844,253
Bills receivables JEU 15 77,034 96,497
945,254 940,750
Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables B FEWAR ORI E B (1,646) (5,533)
943,608 935,217
2| Al e AN T
Majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. Trade and bills AREARIBDHE 2 5 E BN F30%60

R o RUERR MR 2 REESINT

receivables were aged as follows:

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

0 - 60 days 0— 60K 879,439 829,685
61 - 120 days 61 — 120K 64,378 100,381
121 days — 1 year 121k — 148 1,437 10,684
945,254 940,750
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

12 BRERRKRE (8)

FEYSRA R ZBIRIA T ERIIE

2017 2016
20175 20165

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HKS BT 159,767 710,279
us$ ETT 751,009 203,401
RMB AR 34,478 27,070
945,254 940,750

The top two customers accounted for approximately 54% (2016: 36%) and 14% (2016:
12%), respectively, of the Group’s trade and bills receivables; all other customers
individually accounted for less than 10% of the Group's trade and bills receivables.

The fair value of trade and bills receivables approximate the net book carrying
amounts:

At 31 March 2017, trade and bills receivables of approximately HK$ 1,646,000 (2016:
HK$5,533,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The individually impaired
receivables relate to sales proceeds receivable from customers, which have remained
long overdue and management considered the recoverability is remote.

At 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$29,185,000 (2016: HK$100,858,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

BHMARFE D R0 ANEE B KRR R EE
54%(20164F : 36%) £214%(2016%F : 12%) : FT
BHMERAEREANER EUER R R ZE DR

10% °

FEYSRA LR E 2 AR ERREFERS

R20179F3 8318 » JE W BR =X

REED

1,646,0007 7T (20164 : 5,533,0007% 7T) E R
BEREEEAE - B 1 R B FE Uk R 518 e U
XEZHEMBHRIBEEH  MZEHEMSE

RECDAMZE  BEEERREAKEMNE
i O

R201793 8318 © BEHEILRBEE 2 EUER
X 429,185,000/ JT (20164 : 100,858,000/8
o) e HEAR TRPIEERLEZEREE

B o R ERUSRRZ R DT RIS

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T

Past due by: £ % Ey -
0 - 60 days 0— 60K 29,185 68,138
61 - 120 days 61 — 120K = 20,534
121 days — 1 year 121K — 14 - 12,186
29,185 100,858
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12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 12 BUERRKRREE (&)
Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as REBEERRFTIEL RERE 2 ZH
follows: N
2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
At 1 April R4A18 5,533 10,909
Currency translation differences ISR = EE 24 (56)
Reversal of provision, net B[Ol B 5 5 58 (3,865) (5,293)
Written off e (46) (27)
At 31 March MR3A31H 1,646 5,533

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included & JBl B F& W FIE B B O 5% 32 M BRBR B 5T A 4R
in distribution and selling expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. & E@mix 2D HRHER IR st AREER
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is 2 FKIB—RRTETE BR4E A IR [ 58 INR S B Al SS o
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the net book carrying R&EEH - R AEERK A LM EKRIRR Z
amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral ~ BREF{E o AN 5 B W £ 15 5 (A K 1 S 1E &
as security.

Sa

o
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13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FRUBRENT (B)

13 &~ ANREREBERRIE

2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Rental, utility and other deposits He  PARBEEMZE 319 10,802
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEFEHENZHE 33,083 29,776
Prepayments for purchase of machinery BB MR TE( R 42,657 46,849
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights st B £ b (5 AR RE TR S FR0E 58,132 40,415
Other prepayments H b IB T FRIE 6,867 3312
Value-added tax recoverable ] Y [o] 3 (B F 24,274 30,904
Interest receivable FE UL FI B, 349 1,560
Others HAth 19,460 21,498
185,141 185,116

Less non-current portion: RIERENER S -
Prepayments for purchase of machinery B MesTE N ZRIE (42,657) (46,849)
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights Uit B -t {5 AR A TR SROE (58,132) (40,415)
(100,789) (87,264)
Current portion mENEB D 84,352 97,852

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following

BE - BNREAREMMEKGKIRR T8

currencies: HE -
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Us$ ESViH 36,531 65,890
VND WEE 81,202 51,308
RMB AR 64,312 64,525
HKS BT 3,096 3,393
185,141 185,116

The book carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the book carrying

value of deposits, prepayments and other receivables. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.
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14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 14 {TEE®T A
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Forward foreign currency contracts RHIINES Y

~ Assets —BE = =
- Liabilities —AafE - (3,704)

At 31 March 2016, the notional principal amount of the Group's outstanding forward 7201638318 + ANEE 2 KRB HIRHINE
foreign currency contracts was HK$266,291,000. BRI BEARER 266,291,000/ 7T ©

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the derivative financial assets at the balance ~REEH @ fTESREEZRAEERR A
sheet date is the book carrying value of the derivative assets. Refer to Note 3.1 for $TAEBEZREE - SHE—FER  H2

further information. BIFIEE3D ©
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 15 REPBESEEEB UREHRITER
2017 2016
20174 20165
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSFHEIER 995,538 570,855
Short-term bank deposits RAERITIE R 86,306 881,628
1,081,844 1,452,483

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the book carrying ~ R&&H A @ FERR Z &ARR /RTHEE
value of the cash at banks. ZBREE °

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the 354 %384 2 (E1E B b & 58 2R 4R 1T 17 IR A

following currencies: TEEEHE
2017 2016
20174 20165
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
uss$ I 659,302 553,774
HKS BIT 252,005 463,520
RMB AR 166,831 403,198
VND WA 3,112 31,417
Others HAih 594 574
1,081,844 1,452,483
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS (Cont'd) 15 BE&RELSEEEE UK ERBTER (&)

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB and VND are primarily AEBAARBRBEBIIEZRE SR
deposited with banks in the PRC and Vietnam. The conversion of these RMB and YND RITHER T EEFHA R B R ME 2R
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the T - BZEARBRUEMEYEZ &%
PRC and Vietnam are subject to rules and regulations on foreign exchange control HIR R SN DA R B B AR B N B R 3R AN
promulgated by the PRC Government and the Vietnam Government, respectively. 7838 <7 FR BB K R U 9 Bl AR TR 2
HNE B AR Bl AR TE o
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates RITRSRBITE A FRAELZ B R
ranging from 0.8% to 2.1% per annum at 31 March 2017 (2016: 0.5% to 2.1% per BFLE - BR20176F3A31B BREN T &
annum). 0.8%%2.1% (20165 : FEF0.5%ZE2.1%) °
The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31 20174 &20165F3 A31H » R EIRITHE
March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: RERFEREEZEHEAT ¢
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
Effective annual interest rate ERRFF = 0.92% 1.2%
Maturities FHAE 91-365 days 90-308 days
91-365K 90-308K
16 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 16 BRARKA=E
(a) Share capital (a) R
Number
of share Share capital
(thousands) HK$’000
RAEE &S
(F5t) FExT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid EERTRBCEER
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 M2015F4H18 ~ 20165331 & 1,446,423 1,446

201793 A31H

(b) Share premium (b) B3 EME
In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, the REHASHSARIEAFE2E . P
share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided BAHS K FARBRR - HEARE
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be REERZRERSEBR AR
distributed the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when HMEE B RERGTBHOEE -

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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16 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Cont'd) 16 BRARRARE ()
(c) Share option scheme (c) BBRAESTE

The Group’s share option scheme was approved and adopted by the Company
by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved the granting of options to
eligible employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 shares of the Company
at an exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3-9 years. These
share options are exercisable at any time during the period from 11 October
2016 to 10 October 2023.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013, determined using
the binomial model, was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant inputs
to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise price of
HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an expected
option life of 10 years, and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%. The volatility
measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical volatility of the
Company.

Movements in share options are as follows:

7N £ B B8 A% #E 5T &I 2 1820074F4 B 27
BRBHRREMAZR 2 A EAR
AIHLE R ERAR o

R2013510A11E  EER#ERE
EREERHBRE  UEBEERT
{5 {8 & 1%9.9878 JL R BE A ££10,000,000
ARRIED  BEBHAE=ZENF -
% % BB A% #E AT 2016510811 B B
2023108108 HA & A 1E {A] BF 8 97
fif o

2 72013F10811 8 & E & 88 I #
R B EA R v 8 518,529,000
T BDAZEABEEERAET
ZEBEANETEZERERT AR
8 £9.9878 7T ~ 11F 8 /B9.98% 7T
IR AB45%  BHFERERREA
9% - TEHREEIEHAR B10F R FE &
[2 % F R £2.09%:1 & - R iR H B 5
ZRENETIRER R R 2 BERBE
matE -

B2 EEIT

Number of share options

BREZR
2017 2016
20175 20165
At 1 April R4A1H 9,900,000 9,900,000
Forfeited 2 UL (650,000) =
At 31 March MR3/31H 9,250,000 9,900,000

The above outstanding share options have the following expiry date and
exercise price:

Exercise price
per share
Expiry date HK$

BRITEE
A BT

it ARITER IR B BB RITE
BT :

Number of share options

BREHE
2017 2016

10 October 2023 2023104108 9.98

20175 20165

9,250,000 9,900,000
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17 RESERVES 17 &%

Foreign

Capital Statutory currency  Share-based  Available-for-

reserve reserves  translation compensation salefinancial  Retained
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) reserve reserve assetsreserve  earnings
ONGiE)
EXiE  EERK S itz e
(W) (WEG)  BERE HemE SHEERE RERT st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAR TARL TARL TARL TER TER

At 1 April 2015 ®201554A1R 1,000 182,853 461,738 5668 47 1390775 2,042,081

Profit attributable to equity holders of KARERHE AEEGF

the Company = = = = - 1125530 1,125,530
Currency translation differences ShERE =T - - (108920) - - - (108920)
Release of available-for-sale financial assets  {H E RS AERA A fit i &

reserves upon disposal SHEERE = = = = 47) = 47)
Total comprehensive income e NS - - (108,920) - (47) 1125530 1016563
Transaction with owners: BEEARS

Share-based compensation expense IR BERE 2 B4

(Note 24) (Fizk4) - - - 3959 - - 3959

Transfer to statutory reserve ERTTTRR - 137,558 - - - (137,558) -

2014/2015 final dividends 2014/2015F RER &, = = = = - (578569)  (578,569)

2015/2016 interim dividends 2015/2016FHER & = = = = - (578569  (578,569)
Total transaction with owners HHEEARH B - 137558 - 3959 - (12946%) (1,153179)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3A31H 1,000 320411 352,818 9,627 - 1,221,609 1,905,465
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17 RESERVES (Cont'd) 17 &% (&)
Foreign
Capital Statutory currency  Share-based
reserve reserves translation  compensation Retained
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) reserve reserve earnings
MR A
EARE EERE s Efz
(MzEG) (WzEGi)) RERE Wefts REB A @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx Tz TR TR TR ThR7
At 1 April 2016 R2016%481R 1,000 320,411 352,818 9,627 1,221,609 1,905,465
Profit attributable to equity holders of ARAERREEAELER
the Company - - - - 975,573 975,573
Currency translation differences SNEBEEE - - (148,864) - - (148,864)
Total comprehensive income 2ERAEE - - (148,864) - 975,573 826,709
Transaction with owners: BEEARS
Share-based compensation expense ARG AR HE ST
(Note 24) (Fitit4) - - - 2,856 - 2,856
Transfer to statutory reserve EREZITRS - 17,613 - - (17,613) -
2015/2016 final dividends 20152016 F KR E = = = = (578,569)  (578,569)
2016/2017 interim dividends 2016120175 R IR & = = = = (433,927)  (433,927)
Total transaction with owners BREAEARGEE - 17,613 - 2,856 (1,030,109)  (1,009,640)
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3831H 1,000 338,024 203,954 12,483 1,167,073 1,722,534
Representing: R
Proposed final dividend (Note 26) BEAMRE (MzFs) 433,927
Qthers 2t 733,146
1,167,073
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17 RESERVES (Cont'd)
Notes:

(i

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in Macau and
statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary incorporated in
Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax profit to legal reserve
until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its capital. The
amount of legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% of its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to be
appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined according to the relevant
regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the subsidiary. Such
statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase capital,
or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.

These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary.

No other statutory reserves are required to be made by the Group in other
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

18 BORROWINGS

126

Non-current:

FERE :
— eI FfT /B 2 A FE R ) 1t

Loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary

FRUBRENT (B)

17 f#f& ()
BRE -

(i)

BARRERRIE20045 11 A 2 AR
BB QR 2 E{E AR R UL %
TZBAEEZ Z5

VETE R 1R PR P RE M AL 2 — [P BB
REZAERFEENDBEEMAZZ —
fEIff B R ) 2R R

RIEE BRI AR - FRPIEMA S
2 BB A BB E bR B & R A i 4 25%
BAGERE  BERZEEERESE
BERHERA50%5 1 o 5% M B A 7] 28
ERAREBEZ B EERAR50% °

PR B S 2 T B8 2 RIS A FE
REERR 2 FERNEREZREA
e R 2 IOR F 2 A AR B E TOAE
- REOEERBE S XIZIBHET
BUEZRIAZMBAREERATR
E - ARDEERiBR A AIEE H 25
1B EBIMERHRBERRIEARE T

R -

FZEERERETRED KT LB AR
ZRESFRAN e

REBEANANE B LS PTEREA
EUERER L EARERE

18 B &

2017
20175

2016
2016%F
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
TR

(Note (i) e E R (MEa6) 144,772 144,409
Current: -
Short-term bank loans (Note (ii)) REAERSRITE SR (BIREGi) 471,701 686,473

Notes:

U]

The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in USS,
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and not expected to be repayable within the next
12 months. The fair value of this balance approximates its carrying amount.

The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair value of the bank loans
approximates their carrying amounts.
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18 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 18 6& (&)
The Group's borrowings, after taking into account of repayable on demand clause, L REVHAEBGNR  AEBZEEE
are repayable as follows: EHRIT

2017
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 FiBE
Within 1 year or on demand B FEASIRERER 471,701 686,473
The Group's borrowings repayable based on the scheduled repayment dates are Rt BRAHAEEREERNEEN
as follows: IS¢
2017 2016
201745 2016%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THERT TET
Within 1 year 1R 191,143 215,893
Between 1 and 2 years 1824 166,310 190,726
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 114,248 279,854
471,701 686,473
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128

BORROWINGS (Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

18 £ ()

AEERITEEZREERATESG

=

2017 2016
20175 20165

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

USS ETT 446,868 611,640
HKS BT 24,833 74,833
471,701 686,473

As at 31 March 2017, borrowings of certain subsidiaries amounting to HK$23,833,000
(2016: HK$125,166,000) were guaranteed by the Company under certain banking
facilities.

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates were as follows:

ANE A AR

6 months or less

M2017F3831H ' BETHBRRI&REE
23,833,0005% 7T (2016%F : 125,166,000/ JT)
HEEBRARRIRES TIRITRE ET &

(o

AEERENNEE(CREARREHER

EE AT

2017
20174

GLEY
FTERT

471,701

2016
20165
HK$'000
FHT

686,473
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities to
be settled after more than 12 months

HiBEARS N2
ERFEHAE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

FRBBRRHE (8)

19 ELEFIE
BEFHESBNT

2017
20174

HK$000
TR

26,069

2016
20165

HKS$'000

TET

28,955

The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

BEEFTSTRIARFEZ BN

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

At 1 April R4H18 28,955 12,178
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss  A4r& BNk (MizE26)

(Note 26) 5,171 17,051
Withholding tax paid B TENE (6,898) =
Currency translation differences SN Z R (1,159) (274)
At 31 March M3A31H 26,069 28,955

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

EEMEHEERABEES CRet kF—

MG RDERE R < AERR) AT

BREFFSTREE -

Provisions
for doubtful
debts, inventory
and staff
benefits
RE - FE
EET
BERRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET
At 31 March 2015 A2015F3H318 4918 4,918
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss  R4RE& B R K (408) (408)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3H31H 4,510 4510
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss R4RA B KT A 7,194 7,194
At 31 March 2017 M2017%3831H 11,704 11,704
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 19 IEFEFTER (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFEHEE

Accelerated Undistributed

tax profits of a
depreciation  subsidiary and
allowance associates
it 18 2 R B
InEHIE 3N
wERE 7R 55 Bz Al #at
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET THERT TR T
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31H 9,519 7,577 17,096
Currency translation differences G T = R = (274) (274)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated REFEEBTmE
statement of profit or loss (5t A,/ k% (509) 17,152 16,643
At 31 March 2016 201653 H31H 9,010 24,455 33,465
Currency translation differences SN ET 2R = (1.159) (1,159)
Withholding tax paid BRI - (6,898) (6,898)
Charged to the consolidated statement of — R4RA BRI
profit or loss 3,465 8,900 12,365
At 31 March 2017 72017563H31H 12,475 25,298 37,773
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to extent BEEFFSHREEDEENTHIAEIRE
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is 7 MELAE F] AR AE B B 12 B R AR A A
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$1,988,000 FIHAEHRENN R AR - NEBIDER
(2016: HK$8,659,250) in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$12,051,000 (2016: ] 45 PR HA 45 85 DK 8 R SR B R B Uk A
HK$34,637,000) that can be carried forward indefinitely against future taxable ®) i I & $812,051,000% 7T (20164 :
income. 34,637,000/ L) W RBIELE ST E E

1,988,000/ 7T (2016%F : 8,659,250/ 7T ) °
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20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20 ERIERRERE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Trade payables FERTERFR 913,916 760,249
Bills payables EANEE 16,345 23,104
930,261 783,353
The book carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximate their fair values. FENERLEEEREEE AL EHE
% o
Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. Trade and ERFETFZEEH BN F30EW0K -
bills payables were aged as follows: ERTBRR R ER 2 BREC AT
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
0 - 60 days 0— 60K 800,656 611,083
61 - 120 days 61— 120K 97,877 151,588
121 days - 1 year 121k — 148 31,728 20,682
930,261 783,353
Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: FEFTBR R R IR A T3 EHEEHE -
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHERT FET
uss$ ETT 839,191 669,069
HKS BT 19,219 69,988
RMB AR 66,274 27,658
VND A 5,577 8,506
Others Hi = 8,132
930,261 783,353
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21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 FERHEER REMENRIE
2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Accrual for operating expenses EERHY Z ERTIEE 45,865 107,884
Payables for purchase of property, plant HEEYE BMEERREZ

and equipment JES kT8 22,856 19,504
Provision for employee benefits expense EEBAZ L BE (BIEEAD)

(including bonus) 97,558 108,221
Provision for customer claims and goods return BERENEREREG 14,473 68,459
Receipts in advance TEWRIR 10,937 1,627
Others HAth 24,622 54,643

216,311 360,338

Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following currencies: FEETTE B K H M BT RIB A T2 & 5T

8 :

2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HKS 7T 60,872 203,861
RMB AR 138,468 135,724
USS ETT 14,017 16,384
Others HAt 2,954 4,369
216,311 360,338
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22 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 22 HttWAREflkzs (EiE) - B8
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Other income; HAamUA -
Sale of residual materials & TRk 39,026 37,968
Sub-contracting income 2 BHKA 10,084 12,721
Handling income BREBUA 3,481 5237
Rental income HEWA 4,940 4,557
Government grants IR I e B 11,594 3,939
Customer compensation for order cancellation BUHRTE 2 B FEE 14,338 25,848
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BE REE2EBE (1,883) (20,357)
Sundry income HIBUA 32,926 21,622
114,506 91,535
Other gains/(losses) — net: H e/ (E18) — FE

Derivative financial instruments — forward foreign PTESRTE — RHINESL
exchange contracts (1,706) (11,870)
Net foreign exchange gains SNE U 2 F (B 5,400 1,023
3,694 (10,847)
118,200 80,688
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

FRUBRENT (B)

23 RMUEHS X

2017
20174

HK$’000
TR

2016
20164
HK$'000
FHET

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BENMREITE 145,855 153,202
Amortisation of land use rights -t {5 PR AR £H 1,321 1,328
Cost of raw materials and consumables used 152 FR R AR B JE 7 mm E A 2 R 4,246,957 4,959,149
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade FEWBR SR B R B R B — JF &R

receivables-net (3,865) (5,293)
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ BEERAHY (BHEESEHE)

emoluments) (Note 24) (PfT5E24) 548,005 625,056
Operating lease payments in respect of land T REFEE A FIR

and buildings 2,973 1,517
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories HEEE K RETF S BE 29,313 8,092
Auditor’s remuneration 1% AN % M

— Audit services — Bz R 2,645 2,623

— Non-audit services — FEEZRB 39 39
(Reversal of)/provision for claims and claims paid, net Z=f& R B =E (#@),~

B — Fq8 (5,944) 31,865

Others Hih 87,084 71,331
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses HEKAK - D REERT A

and general and administrative expenses H—R R A TR 2 5,054,383 5,848,909
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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24 BERAFAX (BEESMHE)

2017 2016

20174 201645

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances TE& - #Ho - CANRER 473,007 545,798
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes  RIKEH — EEEM 2

(Note (a)) (BtEE(a)) 39,967 30,945

Welfare and benefits B R 32,175 44,354

Share-based compensation expense DARR D A2 7 BEY H 2,856 3,959

548,005 625,056

(a) Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes

The Company's subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The
Group contributes to the scheme at 14% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s
employees, subject to a cap, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.
The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to state-sponsored employees’
social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes to
the scheme at 18% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s employees, subject
to a cap. The state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for the
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

(a) BHIEF — ERLRETE

RRARF B 2 M8 A B AT BB
P HE1T B 2R 8 IR AR K48 A AT 81 2 AX
8  AEBRMBARIEEELRH
Z14%m st EEHER (TEBX —
ER) - MEREETI XBERS
MRARESHMBRENZE—FEE -
BREEZERAIARRARKES
XFRBRKE

AEEELHEFREE S MEGIE
RE2FE ([RESE]) - K5
FRMBUREAER ZEBHERET
2 REBREESFE - ARERER
BRutE B GRiER ZEE K
AZ5% T ARGt EIEHHER - A&
B R EEHRBUAE 15008 T4 L
B EgEHZHXESRLE -

ARABRBE B AR AR BAE
BRBEZKMETZREBML SRR EIE
HER - REBRMEARREER
Hriz18% (MEBE—ER) MAaHE
EHER - BERK T2 SRR S
BERRNEBRMRKS
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24 EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 24 EEFEANEX (BEEEML) (8)
(Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEREFHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for HZE2017F3A31BILEE - A5 E
the year ended 31 March 2017 include 2 directors (2016: 3 directors), whose Z5HhmmE AT BIE2RES (2016
emoluments are disclosed in Note 34. The aggregate emoluments payable to F:35EF)  BEZHERME34
the remaining 3 individuals (2016: 2 individuals) are as follows: WEE o ETERT 38 AT (20165 : 2

) ZMe@eBEIT

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and allowances e MER 6,548 4,447
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL 1,277 1,330
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes  :R{R{@F|] — F B FKETE] 36 18
7,861 5,795
The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the following bands: FEFATZMEETYEEBEZA
g
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$2,000,001 — HKS$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$3,000,001 — HKS3,500,000 3,000,001/ JT £ 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
3 2
(c) Senior management remuneration by band () BREEEHFMEE
The number of senior management with emoluments fell within the following EREREABERMEHEELNT
bands:

HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017%8 7T £ 3,500,00078 7T 1 1
2 2
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FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
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25 BAFEUWA R AR A

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT T
Finance income: BRI
— Bank interest income — RITHIBHA 10,251 22,481
— Net foreign exchange gain — HINEE W R FE 1,753 63
12,004 22,544
Finance costs: RS
— Interest expense on bank loans — RITERF B (10,833) (13,633)
— Net foreign exchange loss — JNEEIRIFE (1,574) (4,567)
(12,407) (18,200)
Net finance (costs)/income B (), WMASRE (403) 4,344

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group was subject to Hong Kong profits
tax and PRC enterprise income tax. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC
enterprise income tax has been provided for at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Vietnam enterprise income tax has been
provided for at the rate of 20% (2016: 20%) on the estimated assessable profits for
the year.

The Group's subsidiary in Vietnam is entitled to tax holiday and the profits are fully
exempted from Vietnam enterprise income tax for two years starting from its first
year of profitable operations after offsetting prior year tax losses, followed by 50%
reduction in CIT in next four years. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s
subsidiary in Vietnam started generating assessable profits. However, no profits tax
was payable as a result of such tax holiday.

26 FEBIRAX

RE F2017F3831BLEE KX&EE
EHMESTEHEFRBEMEMESH -
E B RIS ook 6 A E 5T R R R A%
16.5% (2016%F : 16.5%) < i = {E H #
& RBBEMBH T E NG ER
0% A #225% (20165F : 25%) 2 i R 4k
B - MR EEMSR I E NG
JE SR ) 1220% (20164F : 20%) 2 %t
REH B -

AEERBENNBARZE &R -
s E—FEHREBEE e EE
FIFEERT  FBEEEEAHMERE L
ERBH - M2 % MHFZF50%0 A0
BERR - B E2017F3831B ILFEH
M AEERBEONEBARFAES
JERFBLEF - A AREBERRE
RE B EA A EAFISE
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26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 26 FrSHIBAZ ()
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss RERE Bz RINBR Z EHLA
represents:
2017 2016
20174 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Current income tax BVEAFT1S AR
- Hong Kong profits tax — BBHNEH 93,783 75,971
— Oversea corporate income tax — BIMBZEEFTISHL 53,792 75,783
Deferred tax (Note 19) RIERIE (FTEE19) 5,171 17,051
(Over-provision)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE) BETR (6,162) 3,389
146,584 172,194
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount h A £= B B BT 15 B B A 22 % Iﬁigﬁiﬁiﬁ
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the ARNGRAEEREN 2 EFOHREAE
consolidated entities as follows: ZEREEIERNT
2017 2016
20175 201645
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET T
Profit before income tax P18 % B F) 1,135,812 1,294,889
Less: L
Associates results reported net of tax B R R 2 2WMER
(TEH) (32,375) (36,311)
1,103,437 1,258,578

Tax calculated at weighted average domestic tax rate %3 A RIERE el 2R 2

applicable to profits in respective jurisdictions A A B ERGTE 2 B8 155,584 144,613
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (3,920) (4,279)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AANFFS 7,398 4,485
Utilisation of unrecognised tax loss AR ER N TIEEE (6,540) =
Tax concession MBS (9,976) -
Tax losses not recognised RIERR TR IEEE 1,300 6,834
Tax on certain undistributed retained profit of B AR R EARE T ADIK

a subsidiary and associates R 2 Hi18 8,900 17,152
(Over-provision)/under-provision in prior years BREFEE (BEBRE), BETR (6,162) 3,389

146,584 172,194
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.1% (2016: 11.5%). The increase in INHEFHE R B E R14.1% (20165 -
weighted average applicable tax rate is due to a change in the profitability of the 11.5%) ° HIEF 3 A RIE NI A AR
Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries. WEBRRAEEBEARNBFIENEE

LA -
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27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in

issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of

ARBIRERFE ABEET

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

FRBRENT (B)

27 BREF

(a) =&
FRERNBFIZARBERITE AR
IR AR E R B BT INEFHE

s
Al = °

2017 2016
20174

2016%F
HK$'000
T

GLEY
TR

the Company 975,573 1,125,530
Weighted average number of shares in B BT IR E 2

issue (thousands) (FA) 1,446,423 1,446,423
Basic earnings per share (HKS per share) FRERAF (FRAET) 0.67 0.78

(b) Diluted

=

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the share option schemes are
the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A calculation is made in order to
determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market price of the Company’s shares during
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
the outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming

the exercise of the share options.

Profit attributable to equity holders of

ARRERFE ABEET

(b) #5%
BREERNRRAERTENER
IR 2 DA P35 B = AR LR P A HE
BEEBERAE - RIZBRERTS
A T EITZ B0 AW — AR EENE
ZBEEBRK o SEFETIRIRBEMR
RITERBREZREE 2GR EEF
- REBERAAE (REAEXQF
Beinz FHTEREE) WEZ R E
B o A AR E 2 IRfD 81 B R
RRBREETEMETZRNOEA
MEELER o

2017 2016
20174

2016%F
HK$'000
T

GLEY
TR

the Company 975,573 1,125,530
Weighted average number of shares in B BT I a2

issue (thousands) (F&) 1,446,423 1,446,423
Adjustment for share options (thousands) BRERAZE (T0h) = 961
Weighted average number of shares for ARt ESREE R 2

diluted earnings per share (thousands) & hnEF9 8 (FA%) 1,446,423 1,447,384
Diluted earnings per share (HKS per share) BREERT (FRET) 0.67 0.78
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28 DIVIDENDS 28 RE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Interim dividend paid of HK30 cents BEIRTBRE 301U 2 R EARR B
(2016: HK40 cents) (Note (7)) (2016%F = #¥400L) (HEFE()) 433,927 578,569
Proposed final dividend of HK30 cents R AT B 301l 2 REARR B
(2016: HK40 cents) (Note (i) (20164 : B#401L) (PEREG)) 433,927 578,569
867,854 1,157,138
Notes: 5T
(i) On 26 November 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors declared an interim () M2016F11H268 KRR EERE
dividend of HK30 cents per share (2016: HK40 cents) for the six-month period ended KA E20165F9H308 17518 B HifE o
30 September 2016. The amount was paid in January 2017. H AR B & IR 8 301l (20164F : B &40
i) o FZEFRIEER2017F1 AT ©
(i) On 22 June 2017, the Company's Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of HK30 (i) M2017F6A28 - X ARIEEREZ
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2017. This proposed dividend has not EIREZE2017F3A318 I FE R
been reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 B8 RB 3l - #K IR B I £ R
March 2017. 20175F3 A31B M4 & BT S 3k = IR A

RN -
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29 RERETRERME

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

(a) BEEEZHRSE

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax FriSHiana 7l 1,135,812 1,294,889
Adjustments for: LA 18 2 %
Share of profits of associates DIGERE R E 2 (32,375) (36,311)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of certain interest in HEBE ARG TS
an associate 2R (W) 393 (54,941)
Reversal of provision for impairment of interests P —EEE & A 7 Z 5 RE
in an associate B (46,784) (39,900
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BENMREBITE 145,855 153,202
Amortisation of land use rights {5 AR A 6R 1,321 1,328
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BERREZ
and equipment E5ia 1,883 20,357
Share-based compensation expense ARG R BLfE 2 RE X 2,856 3,959
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At E SR E ERERE
financial assets 888 -
Finance income AR AN (12,004) (22,544)
Finance costs TSR A 12,407 18,200
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & EB) R 2 &L 2 7 1,210,252 1,338,239
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD (Em) 37,665 (50,563)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEURBE T ZE IR AN (8,391) (135,029)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments E® « BITHRIB R EMER
and other receivables RIBR A 12,289 18,494
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JiE i Bt A 1 B FRIE R > (38 0)
from associates 8,866 (2,935)
Change in derivative financial instruments METHITAZE (3,704) 3,994
Increase in trade and bills payables JE A< BR SR I SR PR IS A 146,908 36,421
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FERTIE B R E A e FOE
other payables CRA) /1 (147,379) 55,908
Decrease in amount due to JE =T Bt & 1 B FRIE R
an associate (1,062) (2,095)
Cash generated from operations LEBEFCRE 1,255,444 1,262,434
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29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd) 29 RERERERMWE (F&)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of (b) REFEHERERA > HEYWE K
property, plant and equipment comprise: ERRERBRERE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Net book amount BREFE 6,106 24,093
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E¥Z « BE M&E 2 EE (1,883) (20,357)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME BENMKRERESIE
and equipment 4,223 3,736
30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 REAE
At 31 March 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2016: Nil). M2017%3A318 » AEEWES KNG

B1E (201645 : #) o

31 COMMITMENTS 31 &
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARFEIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred REERBEFTAEMAREE ZERH
is as follows: XA
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EEFIEESE T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR E 111,324 169,603
Leasehold land and land use rights THE £ 3th K+ 3o PR 19,532 12,240
130,856 181,843
At 31 March 2017, the Group had authorised an injection of approximately M20176F3A318 - A BB #t /&R B
HK$247,191,000 (equivalent of US$31,801,000) (2016: HK$247,239,000 (equivalent B B A &) E B #9247,191,000%8 7T (FBZER
of US$31,801,000)) as capital of a subsidiary in Vietnam. 31,801,0003 7T) (2016%F : 247,239,000/ JC
(18557431,801,00037T)) °
At 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any significant share of capital 201738318 « AEBE W EEM DG
commitments of its associates (2016: Nil). Bt N A B AR (20165 « &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

31 COMMITMENTS (Cont'd) 31 &¥E (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of land and buildings, as lessees, as follows:

(b) REBLN A
REE (ERAMEAN) BRELRE
FZ NI EE RO AR KR
EESFRAEMNT :

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HKS000
FTHET FHET

As lessee ERAEMA
Not later than 1 year B 1F 384 393
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years i FET IR F 480 96
864 489

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases, as lessors, as follows:

REE (EREEAN) RETATRHL S

A YER ) R R SAETE

TRAEFEIT

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
As lessor: TERHEAEA -
Not later than 1 year THEBIF 2,497 2,339
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years i FE RS E 403 73
2,900 2,412
EARGHEZERER AT 2016/2017 3 143
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BHEn

N + iy 4=
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FEBBRRME (B)
32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 AEEALRS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, B/ — AR B EEESS—
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in 7 SBE B AR R EERKITE
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related 7( FEN BAUBEALTHERAEEH
if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. HE%E %'JY tREATEZAT
W?Eiﬁﬁﬁféa
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties: (a) EERMEATETZRBAOT !
2017 2016
201745 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of goods HEEMR
— A related party (Notes (i) and (ii)) — BEEE AT (MEEG) i) 448 1,546
— An associate (Note (ii) — —fElE A A (Bﬁuf ) 42,355 18,975
42,803 20,521
Rental income ALWA
— An associate (Note (iii)) — — BN T (KEEEGI) 3,962 4,557
Sub-contracting income 2ERA
— An associate (Note (i) — —[AEE AT (MHEEG)) 2,890 2,652
Handling income BEIWA
— An associate (Note (iv)) — —EEE AR (FiEEiv) 3,480 5237

Notes: FifeE -

(i) The related party is a company controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, son of () AAZATRADRESHERREL
Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a director of the Company. TERBI T EES 2 AR -

(i) Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually ) EmiHEED EWATJEE BRBiBE
agreed by both parties in the ordinary course of business. IR TS 5 E 2 BAEETT IR -

(iii) Rental income is determined based on the size of the property and the relevant (i) RWATDERY X EREEE N5 E
market rate. IBERE -

(iv) Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value (iv) m— Fﬂﬁﬁvﬁﬁﬂjuﬁlﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ
of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the B AR B AETE TRER%E
handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties. 396X + I EEIE B AL K TH AR EE 75 KA

R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b) Year-end balances arising from an associate

Amount due from an associate for

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

FRBRENT (B)

32 BEEALRS (M)
(b) —EEBENATELE2FELEE

2017
20174

2016
2016%F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$’000
TR

Uy — M EE S AR D BIA

sub-contracting income and rental income PEiEEALIN 707 410
Amount due from an associate arising from AREBEERELZ

purchase of goods on behalf — ] FE U Bt & A B 3018 33,616 42,779
Amount due to an associate for BN —RHEE A REREeES

rental deposit received (1,417) (2,479)

(c) Key management compensation

(c) TEEBAEME

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Salaries, bonus and allowances e o B4 KoEEL 28,062 30,073
Retirement benefits — defined contribution schemes iR {Rt@H| — 2B T2 = 17
28,062 30,090
B R#HBERERAT 2016/2017 F5; 145



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

A £ X =
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) REMERRNT (B)
33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 33 AR EEEERRFBEZEH
Balance sheet of the Company KATREEEER
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 1,426,978 2,121,498
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NG R 4,643,471 2,437,128
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTAES 2,129 1,992
4,645,600 2,439,120
Total assets EEHAE 6,072,578 4,560,618
EQUITY s
Share capital %N 1,446 1,446
Share premium & 1 % B 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves i 937,491 932,232
2,392,125 2,386,866
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings BE 446,867 611,639
Accruals and other payables FEETTE B K H fh R FRIE 4,983 6,348
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTBT B A R FIE 3,228,603 1,555,765
3,680,453 2,173,752
Total liabilities BEHAE 3,680,453 2,173,752
Total equity and liabilities EzkBERE 6,072,578 4,560,618
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

Reserve movement of the Company

33 AAREERERRABZED (H)
FARREZED

Share-based

compensation Retained
reserve earnings Total
R RER
Z e @ REB&EF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET F#&T
At 1 April 2015 A2015%F481H 5,668 842,384 848,052
Profit for the year FEEF - 1,237,359 1,237,359
Share-based compensation expense LARE 7 A 2R 2 Bl B S 3,959 = 3,959
2014/2015 final dividends 2014/2015F R AR B = (578,569) (578,569)
2015/2016 interim dividends 2015/2016F A EARZ B - (578,569) (578,569)
At 31 March 2016 7A20165F3H31H 9,627 922,605 932,232
At 1 April 2016 201654818 9,627 922,605 932,232
Profit for the year 2 5 A - 1,014,899 1,014,899
Share-based compensation expense VAR (7 AR 2 B & B S 2,856 - 2,856
2015/2016 final dividends 2015/2016F KR ER B - (578,569) (578,569)
2016/2017 interim dividends 2016/2017F R EARR B - (433,927) (433,927)
At 31 March 2017 7201763 A31H 12,483 925,008 937,491
Representing: KR
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) BEEAIRE (Fizk2s) 433,927
Others Hith 491,081
925,008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT (8)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 34 EERTHREARZHE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments ESRTHRARZHS

N\ =135 &
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company ARECHN BNAARESZHER
by the Group are as follows: BT ¢

2017 2016

20174 201645

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE&xT T

Fees e 3,130 3,380
Salaries, bonus and allowances e - B4 KIERL 24,932 26,693
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes  RIKTEF| — EEEM K2 = 17

28,062 30,090

HE2017F3A31BILFE  S=F 2

The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

ST
Retirement
benefit -
Salaries, defined
bonus and  contribution
Name of directors Fees allowances schemes Total
e A RINER —
EEnE e KRR EREMENETE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT TFE T
Executive directors HITES
Wan Wai Loi (Chief executive officer) FER (1THRAEZEL) 1,500 14,259 - 15,759
Tsang Kang Po B 1,000 10,673 = 11,673
Non-executive directors FHITES
Choi Kin Chung g - - - -
Ip Ping Im B - _ _ _
Lam Wing Tak (resigned on MEAR (720174
22 May 2017) 5H22HBHT) - = = =
Lau Yiu Tong 2Rz - - - -
Independent non-executive BAUFHTES
directors
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BER 44 210 - - 210
Ng Ching Wah hiEE 210 = = 210
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel e 8 210 = = 210
3,130 24,932 - 28,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) FEMBRAMNT (B)
34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 34 EERTHARZME (&)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd) EERTHRARZME (H)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: HZE2016F3A3BIEFE  SEFZ 20
AT
Retirement
benefit -
Salaries, defined
bonus and  contribution
Name of directors allowances schemes Total
e A BAREFR -
EEnR we RFH ERMIEE #et
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TERT TERT FET
Executive directors HITES
Wan Wai Loi (Chief executive officer) FER (1TE4EE,) 1,500 13,320 = 14,820
Tsang Kang Po BEER 1,000 11,496 12 12,508
Non-executive directors FHITES
Choi Kin Chung E g el = = = =
Ip Ping Im TR - - - _
Lam Wing Tak ees= 250 1,877 5 2,132
Lau Yiu Tong 2RE - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAA S 210 = = 210
Ng Ching Wah hEZE 210 = - 210
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel i [E &8 210 - - 210
3,380 26,693 17 30,090
35 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 35 HiEER
In April 2017, the gateway of the Group's factory in Vietnam was blocked by certain W2017F48 » AEBNRBERER A
villagers as a result of their requests to the local government not being appropriately OfE THREEEZE  AARSH MK
addressed (“the Issue”). The factory in Vietnam is operated by PCTL, a 71.25% owned R ESR GBS EAR ([ME]) -
subsidiary of the Group. As a result of the blockage, the Group has to temporarily M EREE fPCTL (A= B FEA71.25%H)
suspend the operation of the factory until the Issue is resolved. As of the date of HEBAT) 8 - MAMEE AEEE

approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements, the Issue has not been
resolved. Management consider that the Issue is temporary, which represented a
non-adjusting event happened after the reporting date. At this stage they are not
in a position to reliably estimate the financial impact of the Issue, which will be

EREEHEEZEEEMERIHR -
BEAKBEHZSMBHRRNIERR
ZEERARGEER  EEERR/ZHE

B ol 5 - Y \\i H /4 .
accounted for in the Group's consolidated financial statements subsequent to 31 BRERR - LAR®RSEABREE
March 2017 as and when the Issue is resolved or it can be reliably estimated. FERTAENSH - £ HER REE

ARG RENTHEEE  ERE
SRR KERER AR EHRA
EE2017F3A31 B ENERE M B MK
R o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Rt

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS GEEE

Year ended 31 March,
BZ3A31ALLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20174 2016%F 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T T T T
Revenue WA 5,993,632 6,927,614 6,906,883 7,423,481 6,649,206
Gross profit EF 1,116,484 1,302,504 1,177,906 1,361,371 1,181,534
Profit attributable to: THIALEERA]
Equity holders of RAFERFERA
the Company 975,573 1,125,530 1,074,785 1,116,802 925,165
Non-controlling interests FEFE I MR 13,655 (2,835) (5,119) 2,411) (852)
989,228 1,122,695 1,069,666 1,114,391 924,313
& A =
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GEEERER
As at 31 March,
M3H31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20174 2016%F 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T T T &L
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,889,201 1,886,598 1,760,187 1,471,289 1,372,858
Current assets mBEE 3,122,567 3,544,846 3,966,978 3,882,065 3,903,785
Total assets BAERE 5,011,768 5,431,444 5,727,165 5,353,354 5,276,643
Current liabilities mEAE 1,660,479 1,906,148 2,076,169 1,308,765 1,210,781
Total assets less current liabilities EZEMABERTEBE 3,351,289 3,525,296 3,650,996 4,044,589 4,065,862
Non-current liabilities FEREFAaE 170,841 173,364 156,587 105,776 93,583
Total equity G e 3,180,448 3,351,932 3,494,409 3,938,813 3,972,279
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,462,088 1,638,698 1,890,809 2,573,300 2,693,004
Equity attributable to: THIA TR
Equity holders of the Company RATREZEA A 3,177,168 3,360,099 3,496,715 3,935,013 3,965,845
Non-controlling interests FEPE S R 3,280 (8,167) (2,306) 3,800 6,434
3,180,448 3,351,932 3,494,409 3,938,813 3,972,279
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial
Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expression shall have
the following meanings:

"2017 Financial Year” for the year ended 31 March 2017

"AGM” Annual general meeting of the Company

"Articles” the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended
from time to time

"Board” The board of Directors of the Company

"CG Code” the Corporate Governance Code

"Company” Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

"Directors” the director(s) of the Company

"Group” the Company and its subsidiaries

"INED" the independent non-executive Directors of the Company

"Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

"Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers
"Teejay Lanka PLC" Teejay Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured Jersey Lanka
PLC and Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited), a limited
liability company incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka

GLOSSARY
SHAR

RAF A (OB BED & B2 7% & BB
5N BRIEXESREMEE - THFEAEAEBNUT

2%
(2017 BB
FELoSd

S48 ]

[E%R]
[XRERTA

[ARAF

(&%)
[RE&HE]
[EIFTES

[ Er#al ]

(R A

[ Teejay Lanka PLC]

HE017F38318LEFE
ARRIZRBEFAS

/NGRS AN
BERAA

KRRIZEER
LEERTA
EXGBERAERRA -
—HRFAEREEMAL
ZERRBERAR AR
RBEA P
ARRIZESE
AREREMEAF
AARMBUFRTES
BRES EmRA
FHBETASEETES
RS HRET

Teejay Lanka PLC (FiTfBTextured
Jersey Lanka PLC K Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited) * —FE4R

BHERPAREMKLZ
BRAHE
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GLOSSARY

ERAR
"SFO"
"Shares”

"Share Option
Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong)

Shares issued by the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.001 each

the share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant
to the written resolutions of the Shareholders of the

Company passed on 27 April 2007

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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